
  Page 1 
 

SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY 
SANITATION DISTRICT 

Post Office Box 339, Oceano, California  93475-0339 
1600 Aloha, Oceano, California 93445-9735 

Telephone (805) 489-6666  FAX (805) 489-2765 
www.sslocsd.us 

 
 

AGENDA 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Grover Beach City Hall Council Chambers 
154 S. Eighth Street,  

Grover Beach, CA 93433 
Wednesday, February 5, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. 

 
Board Members                                                             Agencies 
Jeff Lee, Chair       City of Grover Beach 
Caren Ray Russom, Vice Chair                   City of Arroyo Grande 
Linda Austin, Director                  Oceano Community Services District 
 
Alternate Board Members  
Barbara Nicolls, Director           City of Grover Beach 
Lan George, Director       City of Arroyo Grande 
Shirly Gibson, Director       Oceano Community Services District 
__________________________________________________________________________ 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
3. AGENDA REVIEW 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS ON ITEMS NOT APPEARING ON AGENDA 
 

This public comment period is an invitation to members of the community to present 
comments, thoughts or suggestions on matters not scheduled on this agenda.  Comments 
should be limited to those matters which are within the jurisdiction of the District.  The 
Brown Act restricts the Board from taking formal action on matters not published on the 
agenda.  In response to your comments, the Chair or presiding Board Member may: 

• Direct Staff to assist or coordinate with you. 
• Direct Staff to place your issue or matter on a future Board meeting 

agenda. 
Please adhere to the following procedures when addressing the Board: 

• Comments should be limited to three (3) minutes or less. 
• Your comments should be directed to the Board as a whole and not 

directed to individual Board members. 
• Slanderous, profane or personal remarks against any Board Member, Staff 

or member of the audience shall not be permitted 
Any writing or document pertaining to an open-session item on this agenda which is 
distributed to a majority of the Board after the posting of this agenda will be available for 
public inspection at the time the subject writing or document is distributed.  The writing or 

http://www.sslocsd.us/


  Page 2 
 

document will be available for public review in the offices of the Oceano CSD, a member 
agency located at 1655 Front Street, Oceano, California.  Consistent with the Americans 
with Disabilities Act (ADA) and California Government Code §54954.2, requests for 
disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, may 
be made by a person with a disability who requires modification or accommodation in order 
to participate at the above referenced public meeting by contacting the District 
Administrator or Bookkeeper/Secretary at (805) 481-6903.  So that the District may 
address your request in a timely manner, please contact the District two business days in 
advance of the meeting. 

  
5. CONSENT AGENDA: 
 

The following routine items listed below are scheduled for consideration as 
a group.  Each item is recommended for approval unless noted.  Any member of 
the public who wishes to comment on any Consent Agenda item may do so at this 
time.  Any Board Member may request that any item be withdrawn from the 
Consent Agenda to permit discussion or to change the recommended course of 
action.  The Board may approve the remainder of the Consent Agenda on one 
motion. 

 
5A.  Approval of Warrants  
5B. Approval of Meeting Minutes of January 15, 2020 
   

6. ACTION ITEMS: 
 

6A. ELECTION OF CALENDAR YEAR 2020 BOARD OFFICERS  
 
 Recommendation:  Consider and elect a Chair and Vice-Chair for the 2020 

Calendar Year. 
 
 

6B. PRESENTATION AND APPROVAL OF FISCAL YEAR ENDING 2019 
FINANCIAL AUDIT 

 
Recommendation:  That the Board receive a presentation of the audit report of the 
District’s financial records by Moss Levy & Hartzheim, LLP, the District’s 
independent auditor, resolve questions, call for revisions and file the 2018-19 
Financial Audit. 

 
6C. AWARD FOR PRIMARY CLARIFIER NO. 2 REHABILITATION AND COATINGS 

PROJECT TO FLUID RESOURCE MANAGEMENT  
 

Recommendation: 
1. Award a contract for installation and construction of the Primary Clarifier No. 2 

Rehabilitation and Coatings Project to Fluid Resource Management, in the 
amount of $243,257.34. 

2. Authorize the District Administrator to reallocate budgeted funds, in the amount 
of $107,000 to the Primary #2 Clarifier Rehab budget: and 

3. Approve a specific contingency fund for this project up to 10% ($24,325) of the 
total project amount for unforeseen future project events  

 



  Page 3 
 

6D. DISTRICT ADMINISTRATOR AND PLANT OPERATIONS REPORT 
 
Recommendation:  Receive and File. 

 
7. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS:   
 
8. BOARD MEMBER COMMUNICATIONS: 
 
9. CLOSED SESSION: 
  
 PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT pursuant to Government Code Section 54957 

Title: General Counsel 
 
10. ADJOURNMENT: 
 

The next regularly scheduled Board Meeting is March 4, 2020, 6:00 pm at the 
 Arroyo Grande City Hall Council Chambers 

 Branch Street, Arroyo Grande, California 93420 
 



 
 
 
 

This page left intentionally blank. 



VENDOR BUDGET LINE ITEM DETAIL WARRANT NO. ACCT ACCT BRKDN TOTAL
AGP VIDEO AGP VIDEO DECEMBER 2019 011420-4257 7080 650.00 650.00
ALLIED ADMINISTRATORS DENTAL FEBRUARY 4258 6025 720.77 720.77
ALL STAR INDUSTRIAL SAFETY SUPPLIES 10/8/1906 4259 8056 310.22 310.22
ARAMARK UNIFORMS 11/29; 01/03; 01/10 4260 7025 765.18 765.18
BRENNTAG PLANT CHEMICALS BPI12539 4261 8050 5,142.02 5,142.02
CENTRAL CITY TOOL SUPPLY SMALL TOOLS 10/12/2150 4262 8055 97.86 97.86
CHARTER INTERNET AND PHONE 12/19/19-01/28/20 4263 7013 309.95 309.95
CITY OF GROVER BEACH BILLING Dec-19 4264 7081 1,933.25 1,933.25
COASTAL ROLLOFF SERVICE RUBBISH Dec-19 4265 7093 871.06 871.06
CULLIGAN/CCWT EQUIPMENT RENTAL 60340 4266 7032 60.00 60.00
ENGEL & GRAY BIOSOLIDS HANDLING Dec-19 4267 7085 1,977.48 1,977.48
EVERYWHERE RIGHT NOW COMPUTER SUPPORT JANUARY 4268 7082 100.00 100.00
GILBERT TRUJILLO LEGAL Dec-19 4269 7071 647.50 647.50
HARDY DIAGNOSTICS LABORATORY SUPPLIES 2242089 4270 8040 182.95 182.95
HAULAWAY RENTAL EQUIPMENT 11/28/19-12/25/19 4271 7032 93.80 93.80
INDUSTRIAL MEDICAL SUPPLY SAFETY SUPPLIES 90388 4272 8056 80.00 80.00
JAN PRO STRUCTURE MAINTENANCE JANUARY 4273 8060 260.00 260.00
JB DEWAR FUEL 925856 4274 8020 238.22 238.22
KEMIRA WATER PLANT CHEMICALS 9017659031 4275 8050 8,219.80 8,219.80
MARIO DE LEON CONFERENCE PER DIEM 4276 6075 35.00 35.00
MKN ENGINEERS REDUNDANCY ADMINISTRATION 4277 20-7080 2,343.26 2,867.27

REDUNDANCY PROJECT PREQUAL 20-7080 524.01
MINERS ADMIN BUILDING Dec-19 4278 8045 430.15 430.15
OILFIELD ENVIRONMENTAL CHEMICAL ANALYSIS 1906213 4279 7078 85.00 85.00
PRAXAIR EQUIPMENT RENTAL 10/20/19-11/20/19 4280 7032 32.50 32.50
RINCON REDUNDANCY CEQA PLUS & USDA FUNDING 4281 20-7080 5,060.00 11,260.50

REDUNDANCY COASTAL HAZARDS MONITORING 20-7080 6,200.50
SAN LUIS POWERHOUSE EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE EMERGENCY BYPASS PUMP 4282 8030 422.95 422.95
SO CAL GAS UTILITY GAS 11/30/19-01/02/20 4283 7092 3,725.20 3,725.20
SO CO SANITARY RUBBISH JANUARY 4284 7093 412.08 412.08
SPRINT CELL PHONE 12/04/19-01/03/20 4285 7014 109.27 109.27
STANLEY ALARMS FEBRUARY 4286 7011 71.28 71.28
STATE FUND INSURANCE WORK COMP JANUARY 4287 6080 1,706.33 1,706.33
SWRCB FEES ACL ORDER NO. R3-2019-0123 4288 7068 6,000.00 6,000.00
VOID VOID VOID 4289 VOID 0.00 0.00
TRIBUNE ADVERTISING BID INVITE 4290 7005 490.05 490.05
UMPQUA CREDIT CARD Dec-19 4291 4035 3,920.18 3,920.18
VWR LABORATORY SUPPLIES 8088691838 4292 8040 299.12 299.12
SUB TOTAL 54,526.94$        54,526.94$       

SSLOCSD DECEMBER TRANSFER PAYROLL 4293 59,020.64 92,394.54         
RETIREMENT 6060 15,759.63

MEDICAL 6010 17,614.27
SUB TOTAL 92,394.54 92,394.54         

GRAND TOTAL 146,921.48$      146,921.48       

Warrant Register continues on next page.

SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT
WARRANT REGISTER

2/5/2020



VENDOR BUDGET LINE ITEM DETAIL WARRANT NO. ACCT ACCT BRKDN TOTAL
AMERICAN BUSINESS MACHINES OFFICE SUPPLIES 496036 012820-4294 8045 253.95 253.95              
ARAMARK EMPLOYEE UNIFORMS 01/17/20; 01/24/20 4295 7025 597.55 597.55              
AT&T TELEPHONE 01/11/20-02/10/20 4296 7013 404.83 404.83              
BRENNTAG PLANT CHEMICALS BPI14986 4297 8050 5,180.80 5,180.80           
BRISCO MILL & LUMBER EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 175717 4298 8030 54.84 54.84                
CAL ELECTRIC SUPPLY 411569; 411211 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 4299 8030 97.20 97.20                
CANNON STRUCTURE MAINTENANCE PRIMARY CLARIFIER 2 CONTROL BOX 4300 26-8065 4,242.24 4,242.24           
CITY OF ARROYO GRANDE BILLING OCTOBER THROUGH DECEMBER 4301 7073 5,652.75 5,652.75           
CULLIGAN CCWT EQUIPMENT RENTAL 60579 4302 7032 190.00 190.00              
DE JESUS LANDSCAPING STRUCTURE MAINTENANCE 1669 4303 8060 450.00 450.00              
GRAINGER EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 9412352883; 9399983296 4304 8030 520.31 520.31              
JAN PRO STRUCTURE MAINTENANCE Feb-20 4305 8060 260.00 260.00              
JB DEWAR FUEL 927095 4306 8020 73.90 73.90                
JOHN DEERE EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE PLANT CARTS 4307 8030 275.28 275.28              
JONES AND MAYER LEGAL COUNSEL DECEMBER 4308 7071 92.50 92.50                
OILFIELD CHEMICAL ANALYSIS 200186 4309 7078 85.00 85.00                
PG&E ELECTRICITY 12/10/19-01/08/20 4310 7091 13,108.97 13,108.97         
SAFETY KLEEN EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 82,175,125.00 4311 8020 4,858.50 4,858.50           
SANTA MARIA FAMCON EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE S100020147.001 4312 8030 154.44 154.44
USA BLUEBOOK EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 126,647.00 4313 8030 147.00 147
VWR LAB SUPPLIES MULTIPLE 4314 8040 1,356.16 1356.16
SUB TOTAL 38,056.22$        38,056.22$       

GRAND TOTAL 184,977.70$      184,977.70$     

We hereby certify that the demands numbered serially from 011420-4257 to 012820-4314 together with the supporting evidence 
have been examined, and that they comply with the requirements of the SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY SANITATION
DISTRICT.  The demands are hereby approved by motion of the SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT,  
together with warrants authorizing and ordering the issuance of checks numbered identically with the particular demands and
warrants.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS: DATE:

Chairman Board Member

Board Member Secretary

2/5/2020

SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT
WARRANT REGISTER CONTINUED



 

Item 5B. Page 1 
 

 SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY 
SANITATION DISTRICT 

Post Office Box 339, Oceano, California 93475-0339 
1600 Aloha, Oceano, California 93445-9735 

Telephone (805) 489-6666 FAX (805) 489-2765 
www.sslocsd.org 

__________ 
SUMMARY ACTION MINUTES 

Regular Meeting of Wednesday, January 15, 2020 
____________________________________________________________________________ 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

 
Chair Lee called the meeting to order and recognized a quorum. 
 
Present: Jeff Lee, Chair, City of Grover Beach 
  Caren Ray Russom, Vice Chair, City of Arroyo Grande 

Shirly Gibson, Alternate, Oceano Community Services District 
      
District Staff: Jeremy Ghent, District Administrator 
  Keith Collins, District Legal Counsel 
  Amy Simpson, District Bookkeeper/Secretary 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Superintendent Jones led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

3. AGENDA REVIEW 
 
Approved as published. 

 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS ON ITEMS NOT APPEARING ON AGENDA 

  
Julie Tacker commented on the Central Coast Blue project and said the scoping meeting 
will be next Wednesday January 22 at the City of Pismo Beach.   

 
5. CONSENT AGENDA: 

 
5A.  Approval of Warrants  
5B. Approval of Meeting Minutes of December 4, 2019 

 
There was no public comment. 
 
Motion: Director Ray Russom motioned to approve the consent agenda. 
Second:  Director Gibson 

  Action: Approved unanimously by voice vote. 
 
 
 



 

Item 5B. Page 2 
 

6. ACTION ITEMS: 
 

6A. CONTRACT FOR WWTP REDUNDANCY PROJECT ADMINISTRATION 
SERVICES WITH MKN AND ASSOCIATES 

 
Administrator Ghent presented this item.  It was a request to authorize the District 
Administrator to execute a contract for continued Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Redundancy Project Administration Services with MKN and Associates, Inc. 
(MKN), in the amount of $152,196 for the 2020 calendar year. Eileen Shields from 
MKN was also present to answer any questions the Board had. 

 
Julie Tacker commented on ground water and the red legged frog mitigation costs. 

 
Motion: Director Ray Russom motioned to authorize the District 
Administrator to execute a contract for continued Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Redundancy Project Administration Services with MKN and Associates, Inc. 
(MKN), in the amount of $152,196 for the 2020 calendar year. 
Second: Director Gibson 
  
Action Approved unanimously by roll call vote.  
 

6B. DISTRICT ADMINISTRATOR AND PLANT OPERATIONS REPORT 
 
Superintendent Jones reported that the District continues to meet permit 
limitations.  He provided an update on operations and maintenance projects, work 
orders completed and training. 
 
Administrator Ghent presented the Administrators Report.  He provided updates 
on the Redundancy Project and Central Coast Blue. He said MNS, the 
Redundancy construction management firm, is now actively engaged in the 
project.  The District is revisiting use of a Cogen to utilize methane gas to power 
and heat portions of the plant. The Halcyon refunds have been mailed.  He said 
he met with Will Clemons, General Manager of the OCSD, to discuss a path for 
moving forward with all agencies using the same method for District billing. 
 
Julie Tacker commented on the Redundancy Project and comments from the 
USDA related to the PLA. 
 
Eileen Shields from MKN answered Ms. Tackers questions. 
 
Action: The Board received and filed this report. 

 
7. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS:  
 

There were none. 
 

8. BOARD MEMBER COMMUNICATIONS 
 

Director Gibson announced Oceano is presenting a fire tax informational session on 
Saturday January 25 at the Oceano Community Services District at 3 p.m. 



 

Item 5B. Page 3 
 

Director Ray Russom announced there is a lane shut down on Oak Park due to a 
developing sink hole. 

 
Chair Lee said the Grover Beach City Council will be hearing the MOU for Central Coast 
Blue at their regularly scheduled meeting on Tuesday, January 21. 

 
9. CLOSED SESSION: 
 
 Legal Counsel Collins announced Closed Session. 
 

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT pursuant to Government Code Section 54957 
subsection B 
Title: General Counsel 

 
Julie Tacker commented on a letter of resignation and conflict of interest. 

 
Patricia Price commented on conflict of interest. 
 

10. REPORT OUT OF CLOSED SESSION: 
  

• Board accepted the Retirement of Gil Trujillo, General Legal Counsel 
• Board appointed Jones & Meyer as interim General Legal Counsel 
• Board directed staff to pursue an RFP for new General Legal Counsel 

 
 
11. ADJOURNMENT: 

 
7:15 p.m. 

 
THESE MINUTES ARE DRAFT AND NOT OFFICIAL UNTIL APPROVED BY THE 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AT A SUBSEQUENT MEETING. 



 
 
 
 

This page left intentionally blank. 



Item 6A. Page 1 
 

SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY 
SANITATION DISTRICT 

Post Office Box 339 Oceano, California  93475-0339 
1600 Aloha Oceano, California 93445-9735 

Telephone (805) 489-6666 FAX (805) 489-2765 
www.sslocsd.org 

 
 

______________________________________________________________________ 
          STAFF REPORT 

 
Date:  February 05, 2020 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From: Jeremy Ghent, District Administrator 
 
Subject: ELECTION OF CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR FOR THE 2020 CALENDAR 

YEAR  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The Board consider and elect a Chair and Vice Chair for the 2020 Calendar Year. 
 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION: 
 
Section 1 of the District Bylaws state: 
 

1.4 The Chair and Vice Chair of the Board shall be elected annually at the 
first meeting in January of each calendar year, or at the next regular or special 
meeting if Directors have not been timely designated by their respective 
agencies. 

 
 
 
 

 
Attachment: 
 
 District Bylaws Update May 2019 



SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS BYLAWS 

MAY 2019 UPDATE 

1  

 
1. OFFICERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
 1.1 The officers of the Board of Directors are the Chair and Vice Chair. 
 

1.2 The Chair of the Board of Directors shall serve as Chair at all Board meetings. 
He/she shall have the same rights as the other Directors of the Board in voting, 
introducing motions, resolutions and ordinances, and any discussion of questions 
that follow said actions. 

 
1.3 In the absence of the Chair, the Vice Chair of the Board of Directors shall serve as 

Chair over all meetings of the Board. If the Chair and Vice Chair of the Board will 
both be absent, the Chair may name any member of the Board to perform the 
duties of the presiding officer prior to the meeting.  If the Chair’s absence is 
unexpected, the Chair shall be as specified by standing order of the Chair.  

 
1.4 The Chair and Vice Chair of the Board shall be elected annually at the first meeting 

in January of each calendar year, or at the next regular or special meeting if 
Directors have not been timely designated by their respective agencies. 

 
1.5 The term of office for the Chair and Vice Chair of the Board shall commence on 

February 1 of the year immediately following their election. 
 

1.6 The Chair, or in his/her absence, the Vice Chair, are authorized to attend meetings 
of the San Luis Obispo County Planning Commission, meetings of the California 
Coastal Commission, meetings of the San Luis Obispo County Board of 
Supervisors, meetings between District Staff and Water Board Personnel, 
including either Regional Water Quality Control Staff or State Water Board Staff 
on behalf of the District, without compensation except reimbursement for use of 
his/her private vehicle to attend such meetings pursuant to District Policy 11.1(b). 
If the Chair is absent, the Vice Chair or Board member may attend these meetings. 

 
1.7 The Chair, or in his/her absence, the Vice Chair shall meet with the District 

Administrator in advance of a regularly scheduled meeting to review all Warrants 
to be presented at the next regular Board meeting.  

 
2. MEETINGS 
 

2.1 Subject to holidays and scheduling conflicts, regular meetings of the Board of 
Directors shall commence at 6:00 p.m. on the first of each calendar month at such 
meeting location within the District boundaries designated by the Board. The Board 
of Directors reserves the right to cancel and/or designate other dates, places and 
times for Director Meetings due to scheduling conflicts and holidays. 

 
  

Item 6A. Attachment 



SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS BYLAWS 

MAY 2019 UPDATE 

2  

 
2.2 SPECIAL MEETINGS 

 
Special meetings may be called by the Chair or two (2) Directors with a minimum 
of twenty-four (24) hours public notice. A special meeting agenda shall be prepared 
and distributed pursuant to the procedures of the Brown Act by the District 
Administrator in consultation with the Chair, or in his or her absence, the Vice Chair 
or those Directors calling the meeting. 

 
2.3 Directors shall attend all regular and special meetings of the Board unless there is 

good cause for absence. 
 

2.4 No action or discussion may be taken on an item not on the posted agenda; 
provided, however, matters deemed to be emergencies or of an urgent nature may 
be added to the agenda under the procedures of the Brown Act. Pursuant to the 
Brown Act: 

 
(a) Directors may briefly respond to statements or questions from the public; 

 
(b) Directors may, on their own initiative or in response to public questions, ask 

questions for clarification, provide references to staff or other resources for 
factual information, or request staff to report back at a subsequent meeting; 

 
(c) A Director individually, or the Board by motion, may take action to direct 

the District Administrator to place a matter on a future agenda. If requested 
by a Director individually, the District Administrator shall inquire whether a 
majority of the Board wishes to entertain the item; and 

 
(d) Directors may make brief announcements or make a brief report on his/her 

own activities under the Director Comment portion of the Agenda. 
 

2.5 MEETING PROTOCOL 
 

(a) Policy. The purpose of oral presentation at District meetings, as well as 
written presentations, is to formally communicate to the Board of Directors 
on matters (1) listed on the Agenda, or (2) matters that are within the 
jurisdiction of the Board of Directors during general public comment. Such 
presentations are helpful to the Board in its decision- making process. The 
Board of Directors welcomes information and expressions of opinion from 
members of the public on any item which it may be considering. However, 
the Board of Directors is not required to provide a public forum for remarks 
or conduct in violation of the Rules of Decorum. 

 
(b) Public Comment. Subject to the following rules, the Board of Directors shall 

set aside 30 minutes on each agenda item for public comment.  
 
(c) The Chair, after consideration of the length of the Agenda, the nature of the 

agenda item, and the meeting limitations of Section 2.1, may expand or 
further limit the 30-minute time allocation for public comment. 

 

Item 6A. Attachment 



SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS BYLAWS 

MAY 2019 UPDATE 

3  

 
(d) Each public commenter shall be limited to three (3) minutes unless 

shortened or extended by the Chair with consideration of the length of the 
Agenda, the nature of the agenda item, and the meeting limitations of 
Sections 2.1, above. 

 
2.6 DISTURBANCE OF BOARD MEETINGS 

 
2.6.1 Rules of Decorum. The rules of decorum, below, shall apply to public 

comment and attendance at District meetings. 
 

(a) No person shall address the Board of Directors without first being 
recognized by the Chair. 

 
(b) Persons addressing the Board have the option to state their name 

and their general place of residence. 
 
(c) Public comment and public testimony shall be directed to the Chair 

and shall be addressed to the Board of Directors as a whole. 
Persons addressing the Board of Directors shall not engage in a 
dialogue with individual Directors, District staff or members of the 
audience. The Chair shall determine whether, or in what manner, 
the District will respond to questions. 

 
(d) Persons addressing the Board are limited to one opportunity per 

Agenda item unless otherwise directed by the Chair in his/her 
discretion. 

 
(e) A person cannot defer his/her time allocation to another person. 
 
(f) When a group or organization wishes to address the Board on the 

same subject, the Chair may request that a spokesperson be 
chosen to speak for that group. The spokesperson's three (3) 
minute time allocation may be extended by the Chair in his/her 
discretion. 

 
(g) Persons addressing the Board shall confine the subject matter of 

their comments to the Agenda item being considered by the Board 
of Directors. 

 
(h) Each person addressing the Board of Directors shall do so in an 

orderly and civil manner and shall not engage in conduct which 
disrupts the orderly conduct of the District meeting. 

 
(i) The Chair may rule a speaker out of order who is unduly repetitious 

or extending discussion of irrelevance. 
  

Item 6A. Attachment 



SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS BYLAWS 

MAY 2019 UPDATE 

4  

 
(j) Except as provided below, persons who reference or read from 

documents such as reports, exhibits, or letters (“Documents”) as 
part of his/her comment to the Board shall lodge the Document (or 
a copy) with the District Secretary at the end of the comment, to 
allow the Document to be appropriately referenced in the meeting 
Minutes and to allow District staff the opportunity to review and 
respond to the Document. The Chair has the discretion to strike a 
speaker’s comments from the record for failure to lodge the 
referenced Documents. Upon request, the lodged Documents shall 
be returned to the speaker after 1:00 p.m. on the day following the 
meeting. 

 
2.6.2 Exceptions: 

 
(a) Speaker’s presentation outline.  However, documents referenced in 

the outline shall be lodged. 
 

(b) Documents that are in the Agenda packet. 
 

(c) Documents that have been previously published by the District, so 
long as the speaker identifies the Document by date, author and the 
pages referenced or read from. 

 
(d) For voluminous Documents the speaker need only lodge the cover 

sheet that identifies the author and date and the pages read from 
or referenced. 
 

2.7 Enforcement of Rules of Decorum. Any person who violates the Rules of 
Decorum may, at the discretion of the Chair, be removed from the meeting. The 
Rules of Decorum shall be enforced in the following manner: 
 
(a) Warning. The Chair shall warn the person who is violating the rules of 

decorum. 
 
(b) Expulsion. If after receiving a warning from the Chair, the person persists 

in violating the rules of decorum the Chair shall order the person to leave 
the Board meeting room for the remainder of the meeting. 

 
(c) Assisted Removal. If such person does not voluntarily remove 

himself/herself, the Chair may order any law enforcement officer who is on 
duty at the meeting, or who may be summoned to the meeting, to remove 
the person from the Board room. 

 
(e) Restoration of Order. If order cannot be restored by the removal of individuals who 

are disrupting the meeting, the Board meeting will be continued under the 
provisions of Government Code §54957.9 
 

  

Item 6A. Attachment 



SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS BYLAWS 

MAY 2019 UPDATE 

5  

 
2.8 Limitations (Government Code §59454.3(c)). The Rules of Decorum shall not be 

interpreted to prohibit public criticism of the policies, procedures, programs or 
services of the District. 

 
2.9 The Chair, or in his/her absence the Vice Chair, or if both are absent, the Chair’s 

designee as provided by Paragraph 1.3, shall be the presiding officer at District 
Board meetings.  He/she shall conduct all meetings in a manner consistent with 
the policies of the District. He/she shall determine the order in which agenda items 
shall be considered for discussion and/or actions taken by the Board. He/she shall 
announce the Board's decision on all subjects. He/she shall vote on all questions 
and on roll call votes his/her name shall be called last. 

 
2.10 Two (2) Directors of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of 

business. When a quorum is lacking for a regular, adjourned, or special meeting, 
the Chair, Vice Chair, or any Director shall adjourn such meeting; or, if no Director 
is present, the District Secretary shall adjourn the meeting. 

 
2.11 Except as otherwise specifically provided by law, a majority vote of the total 

membership of the Board of Directors is required for the Board of Directors to take 
action. 

 
2.12 A roll call vote shall be taken upon the passage of all ordinances and resolutions 

and shall be entered in the Minutes of the Board, showing those Directors voting 
aye, those voting no, those not voting because of a conflict of interest, abstention 
or absent. A roll call vote shall be taken and recorded on any motion not passed 
unanimously by the Board.  Silence shall be recorded as an affirmative vote. 

 
2.13 Any person attending a meeting of the Board of Directors may record the 

proceedings with an audio or video tape recorder or a still or motion picture camera 
in the absence of a reasonable finding that the recording cannot continue without 
disruptive noise, illumination, or obstruction of view that constitutes or would 
constitute a disruption of the proceedings. 

 
2.14 All video tape recorders, still and/or motion picture cameras shall remain stationary 

and shall be located and operated from behind the public speaker’s podium once 
the meeting begins. The Chair retains the discretion to alter these guidelines, 
including the authority to require that all video tape recorders, still and/or motion 
picture cameras be located in the back of the room. 

  
3. ETHICS TRAINING 
 

3.1 Pursuant to sections 53234 et seq. of the Government Code all Directors and 
designated District personnel shall receive at least two (2) hours of ethics training 
every two years. 

  

Item 6A. Attachment 



SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS BYLAWS 

MAY 2019 UPDATE 

6  

 
3.2 Each newly appointed Board member will receive such training from their Agency. 

Each newly designated District personnel shall receive ethics training no later than 
one year from the first day of service with the District and thereafter shall receive 
ethics training at least once every two years. 

 
4. AGENDAS 

 
4.1 The District Administrator, in cooperation with the Board Chair, shall prepare the 

agenda for each regular and special meeting of the Board of Directors. Any 
Director may call the District Administrator and request an item to be placed on the 
regular meeting agenda no later than 5 p.m. eleven (11) calendar days prior to the 
meeting date. Such a request must also be submitted in writing either at the time 
of communication with the District Administrator or delivered to the office within the 
next working day. 

 
4.2 A block of thirty (30) minutes time shall be set aside to receive general public 

comment. Comments on agendized items should be held until the appropriate item 
is called. Unless otherwise directed by the Chair, public comment shall be 
presented from the podium. The person giving public comment may choose to 
state his/her name and whether or not he/she lives within the District boundary 
prior to giving his/her comment. Public comment shall be directed to the Chair of 
the Board and limited to three (3) minutes unless extended or shortened by the 
Chair at his/her discretion. 

 
4.3 Those items on the District Agenda which are considered to be of a routine and 

non-controversial nature are placed on the “Consent Agenda”. These items shall 
be approved, adopted, and accepted by one motion of the Board of Directors; 
examples of routine items include approval of Minutes, approval of Warrants, 
various Resolutions accepting developer improvements, minor budgetary items, 
status reports, and routine District operations. 

 
(a) Directors may request that any item listed under “Consent Agenda” be 

removed from the “Consent Agenda”, and the Board will then take action 
separately on that item. Members of the public will be given an opportunity 
to comment on the “Consent Agenda”; however, only a member of the 
Board of Directors can remove an item from the “Consent Agenda”. Items 
which are removed (“pulled”) by Directors of the Board for discussion will 
typically be heard after other “Consent Agenda” items are approved unless 
a majority of the Board chooses an earlier or later time. 

 
(b) A Director may ask questions on any item on the “Consent Agenda.”  When 

a Director has a minor question for clarification concerning a consent item 
which will not involve extended discussion, the item may be discussed for 
clarification and the questions will be addressed along with the rest of the 
“Consent Agenda”. Directors are encouraged to seek clarifications prior to 
the meeting if possible. 

  

Item 6A. Attachment 



SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS BYLAWS 

MAY 2019 UPDATE 

7  

 
(c) When a Director wishes to consider/"pull" an item simply to register a 

dissenting vote, or conflict of interest, the Director shall inform the presiding 
officer that he/she wishes to register a dissenting vote, or conflict of 
interest, on a particular item without discussion. The item will be handled 
along with the rest of the Consent Agenda, and the District Secretary shall 
register a “no” vote, or abstention due to a conflict of interest. 

 
5. PREPARATION OF MINUTES AND MAINTENANCE OF TAPES 
 

5.1 The minutes of the Board shall be kept by the District Secretary and shall be neatly 
produced and kept in a file for that purpose, with a record of each particular type 
of business transacted set off in paragraphs with proper subheads. 

 
5.2 The minutes of the Board of Directors shall record the aye and no votes taken by 

the members of the Board of Directors for the passage or denial of all ordinances, 
resolutions or motions. 

 
5.3 The District Secretary shall be required to make a record only of such business as 

was actually considered by a vote of the Board and, except as provided in Sections 
5.4 and 5.6 below, shall not be required to record any remarks of Directors or any 
other person. 

 
5.4 Any Director may request for inclusion into the Minutes brief comments pertinent 

to an agenda item, only at the meeting in which the item is discussed. In addition, 
the minutes shall include brief summaries of public comment, the District 
Administrator's report, and matters of concern to District legal counsel, District 
committee reports, and Directors' reports. Materials submitted with such 
comments shall be appended to the minutes at the request of the District 
Administrator, District Counsel, the Board Chair, or any Director. 

 
5.5 The District Secretary shall attempt to record the names and general place of 

residence of persons addressing the Board, the title of the subject matter to which 
their remarks related, and whether they spoke in support or opposition to such 
matter. 

 
5.6 Whenever the Board acts in a quasi-judicial proceeding such as in assessment 

matters, the District Secretary shall compile a summary of the testimony of the 
witnesses. 

 
6. DIRECTORS 
 

6.1 Directors shall prepare themselves to discuss agenda items at meetings of the 
Board of Directors. 

 
6.2 Members of the Board of Directors shall exercise their independent judgment on 

behalf of the interest of the entire District, including the residents, property owners 
and the public as a whole. 

  

Item 6A. Attachment 



SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS BYLAWS 

MAY 2019 UPDATE 

8  

 
6.3 Information may be requested from staff before meetings, within such limitations 

as required by the Brown Act. Information that is requested or exchanged shall be 
distributed through the District Administrator, and all Directors will receive a copy 
of all information being distributed. 

 
6.4 Directors should at all times conduct themselves with courtesy to each other, to 

staff and to members of the audience present at Board meetings. 
 
6.5 Differing viewpoints are healthy in the decision-making process. Individuals have 

the right to disagree with ideas and opinions.  Civil discourse is encouraged. Once 
the Board of Directors takes action, dissenting Directors should not create barriers 
to the implementation of said action. 

 
6.6 Except during open and public meetings the use of direct communication, personal 

intermediaries, or technological devices that is employed by a majority of the 
Directors to develop a collective concurrence as to action to be taken on an item 
by the Board of Directors is prohibited. 

 
6.7 Directors shall not be prohibited by action of the Board of Directors from citing his 

or her District affiliation or title in any endorsement or publication, so long as no 
misrepresentation is made, or implied, about the District’s position on the issue. 

 
6.8 Directors are cautioned when using e-mail communications.  Any communication 

from the District Administrator, or the District’s legal counsel, or from other 
members of the Board of Directors, in each case the Director in responding to that 
e-mail shall not respond to “all”, as that could constitute a violation of the Brown 
Act for a serial meeting or other provisions. 

  

Item 6A. Attachment 



SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS BYLAWS 

MAY 2019 UPDATE 

9  

 
6.9 Any Director may complain to the District about another Director’s conduct. 

 
The complaint shall be made in writing and forwarded to the District Administrator 
and District Counsel along with supporting information.  Within five days, the 
District will notify the accused Director in writing the substance of the complaint 
and supporting information.  The notice shall also specify that the accused Director 
has five days to respond with supporting information. 
 
The District Administrator and Counsel shall review the submitted information, 
investigate further as needed, and forward a preliminary report to the District 
Board. 
 
The District Board may: 
 

• Do nothing; 
• Direct staff to place the matter on a regular meeting agenda; 
• Take action in open session at a regular meeting concerning the complaint.  

Any action taken shall be by resolution and shall be consistent with elected 
officials’ right to free speech.  

• Potential actions include, but are not limited to:  finding the complaint 
unfounded, expressing a legislative opinion concerning behavior, and 
issuing an official reprimand (censure) concerning inappropriate behavior. 

 
7. AUTHORITY OF DIRECTORS 
 

7.1 The Board of Directors is the unit of authority within the District. Apart from his/her 
normal function as a part of this unit, Directors have no individual authority. As 
individuals, Directors may not commit the District to any policy, act or expenditure. 

 
7.2 Directors do not represent any fractional segment of the District but are, rather, a 

part of the body which represents and acts for the District as a whole. 
 
7.3 The primary responsibility of the Board of Directors is the formulation and 

evaluation of policy. Routine matters concerning the operational aspects of the 
District are to be delegated to professional staff members of the District. 

 
7.4 Directors, when attending other meetings, may refer to their affiliation as a member 

of the Board of Directors and may make statements on their own behalf or 
endorsements on their own behalf as long as there is no misrepresentation made 
or implied about the District’s position in regards to the issue presented. 

 
8. AUTHORITY OF THE DISTRICT ADMINISTRATOR 
 

The District Administrator shall be responsible for all of the following: 
 
8.1 The implementation of the policies established by the Board of Directors for the 

operation of the District. 
 
 

Item 6A. Attachment 



SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS BYLAWS 

MAY 2019 UPDATE 

10  

 
8.2 The appointment, supervision, discipline, and dismissal of the District’s 

employees, consistent with the District’s Personnel Policies as established by the 
Board of Directors. 

 
8.3 The supervision of the District’s facilities and services. 
 
8.4 The supervision of the District’s finances. 

 
9. DIRECTOR GUIDELINES 
 

9.1 Directors, by making a request to the District Administrator, shall have access to 
information relative to the operation of the District, including but not limited to 
statistical information, information serving as the basis for certain actions of Staff, 
justification for Staff recommendations, etc. If the District Administrator cannot 
timely provide the requested information by reason of information deficiency, or 
major interruption in work schedules, workloads, and priorities, then the District 
Administrator shall inform the individual Director why the information is not or 
cannot be made available. 

 
9.2 In handling complaints from residents or property owners within the District, or 

other members of the public, Directors are encouraged to listen carefully to the 
concerns, but the complaint should be referred to the District Administrator for 
processing and the District’s response, if any. 

 
9.3 Directors, when seeking clarification of policy-related concerns, especially those 

involving personnel, legal action, land acquisition and development, finances, and 
programming, should refer said concerns directly to the District Administrator. 

 
9.4 When approached by District personnel concerning specific District policy, 

Directors should direct inquiries to the District Administrator. The chain of 
command should be followed.  

 
9.5 Directors and District Administrator should develop a working relationship so that 

current issues, concerns and District projects can be discussed comfortably and 
openly. 

 
9.6 When responding to constituent request and concerns, Directors should respond 

to individuals in a positive manner and route their questions to the District 
Administrator. 

 
9.7 Directors are responsible for monitoring the District's progress in attaining its goals 

and objectives, while pursuing its mission. 
 
9.8 No Board member may participate in a hearing or take action on an item which 

creates an economic conflict of interest for the member. Where there is an 
economic conflict of interest, the conflicted member shall announce the nature of 
the conflict of interest and recuse himself or herself from the hearing or deciding 
the matter and thereon step down from the dais and leave the room until the matter 
has been fully considered and voted upon, or otherwise continued. 

Item 6A. Attachment 



SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS BYLAWS 

MAY 2019 UPDATE 

11  

 
10. DIRECTOR COMPENSATION 
 

10.1 Each Director is authorized to receive one hundred dollars ($100.00) as 
compensation for each regular, adjourned or special meeting of the Board of 
Directors attended by him/her. 

 
10.2 Each Director is authorized to receive one hundred dollars ($100) per day as 

compensation for representation of the District at a public meeting or public hearing 
conducted by another public agency and/or participation in a training program on 
a topic that is directly related to the District, provided that the Board of Directors 
has previously approved the member’s participation at a Board of Director’s 
meeting and the member delivers a written report to the Board of Directors at the 
District’s next regular meeting regarding the member’s participation. 

 
10.3 In no event, shall Director Compensation exceed $100 per day. 
 
10.4 Director compensation shall not exceed six full days in any one calendar month. 

 
11. DIRECTOR REIMBURSEMENT 
 

11.1 Each Director is entitled to reimbursement for their actual and necessary 
expenses, including the cost of programs and seminars, incurred in the 
performance of the duties required or authorized by the Board. 

 
(a) It is the policy of the District to exercise prudence with respect to hotel/motel 

accommodations. It is also the policy of the District for Directors and staff 
to stay at the main hotel/motel location of a conference, seminar, or class 
to gain maximum participation and advantage of interaction with others 
whenever possible. 

 
 If lodging is in connection with a conference or organized education activity, 

lodging costs shall not exceed the maximum group rate published by the 
conference or activity sponsor, provided that lodging at the group rate is 
available to the member of the Board of Directors at the time of booking. If 
the group rate is not available, the Director shall use lodging that is 
comparable with the group rate. Personal phone calls, room service, and  
other discretionary expenditures are not reimbursable. 

 
(b) Members of the Board of Directors shall use government and group rates 

offered by a provider of transportation for travel when available. Directors 
using his/her private vehicle on District business, shall be compensated at 
the prevailing IRS per diem mileage rate. 

  

Item 6A. Attachment 



SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS BYLAWS 

MAY 2019 UPDATE 

12  

 
(c) Any Director traveling on District business shall receive in addition to 

transportation and lodging expenses, a per diem allowance to cover 
ordinary expenses such as meals, refreshments and tips. The amount set 
for per diem shall be considered fair reimbursement.  The per diem shall 
include breakfast, lunch and dinner.  The per diem rate shall be pursuant 
to current General Services Administration annually published rates for San 
Luis Obispo County at: gsa.gov. 

 
(d) All travel and other expenses for District business, conferences, or 

seminars outside of the State of California shall require separate Board 
authorization, with specific accountability as to how the District shall benefit 
by such expenditure. 

 
11.2 All expenses that do not fall within the reimbursement policy set forth in 11.1, 

above, shall be approved by the Board of Directors, at a public meeting, before the 
expense is incurred. 

 
11.3 Board members shall submit an expense report on the District form within ten (10) 

calendar days after incurring the expense. The expense report shall be 
accompanied by receipts documenting each expense except for per diem 
allowances. 

 
11.4 Members of the Board of Directors shall provide brief reports on meetings attended 

at the expense of the District at the next regular meeting of the Board of Directors 
and as required by AB 1234. 

 
12. CORRESPONDENCE DISTRIBUTION POLICY 
 

Time permitting, the following letters and other documents shall be accumulated and 
delivered to the Board of Directors on Monday of each week and/or with agenda packet. 

 
12.1 All letters approved by the Board of Directors and/or signed by the Chair on behalf 

of the District; and 
 
12.2 All letters and other documents received by the District that are of District-wide 

concern, as determined by District staff. 
 
13. CONFLICTS AND RELATED POLICY 
 

State laws are in place which attempt to eliminate any action by a Director or the District 
which may reflect a conflict of interest. The purpose of such laws and regulations is to 
ensure that all actions are taken in the public interest. Laws which regulate conflicts are 
very complicated. The following provides a brief policy summary of various conflict related 
laws. Directors are encouraged to consult with District Legal Counsel and/or the Fair 
Political Practices Commission (FPPC) at 1-800-ASK-FPPC (1-800-275-3772), prior to 
the day of the meeting, if they have questions about a particular agenda item. 

  

Item 6A. Attachment 



SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS BYLAWS 

MAY 2019 UPDATE 

13  

 
13.1 Conflict of Interest 

 
Each Director is encouraged to review the District Conflict Code on an annual 
basis. The general rule is that an official may not participate in the making of a 
governmental decision if it is: reasonably foreseeable that the decision will have a 
material financial effect on the official or a member of his or her immediate family 
or on an economic interest of the official, and the effect is distinguishable from the 
effect on the public generally. Additionally, the FPPC regulations relating to 
interests in real property have recently been changed. If the real property in which 
the Director has an interest is located within 500 feet of the boundaries of the 
property affected by decision, that interest is now deemed to be directly involved 
in the decision.  The existing Regulation 18702.2 eliminated a prior bright-line 500-
foot rule.  Determining materiality where a property is more than 500 feet from the 
property subject to the decision is more complicated and subjective, and requires 
a comprehensive review of all factors that potentially affect the value of the 
property. 

 
13.2 Interest in Contracts, Government Codes Section 1090 

 
The prohibitions of Government Code Section 1090 provide that the Board of 
Directors may not contract with any business in which another Director has a 
financial interest. 

 
13.3 Incompatible Office 

 
The basic rule is that public policy requires that when the duties of two offices are 
repugnant or overlap so that their exercise may require contradictory or 
inconsistent action, to the detriment to the other public interest, their discharge by 
one person is incompatible with that interest. When a Director is sworn in for such 
a second office, he/she is simultaneously terminated from holding the first office. 

 
14. EVALUATION OF CONSULTANTS 
 

The District’s legal counsel shall be evaluated by the Board of Directors annually during 
the months of May or June of each year. 

 
15. CONTINUING EDUCATION 
 

Directors are encouraged to attend educational conferences and professional meetings 
when the purposes of such activities are to improve District operation. Subject to 
budgetary constraints, there is no limit to the number of Directors attending a particular 
conference or seminar when it is apparent that their attendance is beneficial to the District. 

 
16. BOARD BYLAWS REVIEW POLICY 
 

The Board Bylaws Policy shall be reviewed annually at the first regular meeting in 
February. The review shall be provided by District Counsel and ratified by Board action. 

  

Item 6A. Attachment 



SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS BYLAWS 

MAY 2019 UPDATE 

14  

 
17. RESTRICTIONS ON RULES 
 

The rules contained herein shall govern the Board in all cases to which they are applicable, 
and in which they are not inconsistent with State or Federal laws. 

Item 6A. Attachment 



 
 
 
 

This page left intentionally blank. 



Item 6B. Page 1 
 

 SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY 
SANITATION DISTRICT 

Post Office Box 339, Oceano, California  93475-0339 
1600 Aloha, Oceano, California 93445-9735 

Telephone (805) 489-6666 FAX (805) 489-2765 
www.sslocsd.org 

 
 

______________________________________________________________________ 
          STAFF REPORT 

 
Date:  February 5, 2020 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Jeremy Ghent, District Administrator 
 
Via:  Amy Simpson, Bookkeeper/Secretary 
 
 
Subject: PRESENTATION AND APPROVAL OF FISCAL YEAR ENDING 2019 

FINANCIAL AUDIT  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board receive a presentation of the audit report of the District’s financial records by Moss 
Levy & Hartzheim, LLP, the District’s independent auditor, resolve questions, call for revisions 
and file the 2018-19 Financial Audit. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The Board executed a 3-year agreement with Moss, Levy & Hartzheim (MLH) to perform the 
District audit for FY 2016-17, 2017-18, and 2018-19 for an amount of $9,300, $9,630 and $9,970 
respectively.  MLH was able to review District financial statements and records and met with 
District Staff to develop the Fiscal Year 2018-19 Audit Report at a cost of $9,970.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Alex Hom from MLH will be at the board meeting of February 5, 2020 to present the firm’s final 
audit report of the District’s financial records.  Staff is seeking questions from the Board members 
regarding the Fiscal Year 2019 audit.  The auditor will respond to these questions and resolve 
any issues.  If the Board finds it is satisfied, Staff asks approval of the audit with any appropriate 
revisions by motion. 
 
 
Attachment:  2018/19 Audit 



54~~.TTH SAKI LU~S ~IBISPQ CC}UI~TY 
SANITATICI► I`~I ~IST~i+CT 

FII~I,~i~~~~L 5~.~~EI~E~~~ 
June 3(~, 2Q 19 

Item 6B. Attachment



Item 6B. Attachment



SOUTH SAN LUIS oBISPo COUNTY SANITATION I)ISTRI~T 
TABLE CAF CONTENTS 
June 3 0, 201 ~ 

IndependentAuditors' Report ...................................................................................................................................... . .................... 1 

Management's Discussion and Analysis ........................................................................................................................................... 3 

BASF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Statement of Net Position —Proprietary Fund ............................ .............. .................. ~ 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes 
in Net Position —Proprietary Fund ....................................................................................................................................... 7 

Statement of Cash Flows —Proprietary Fund ............................................................................................................................ ~ 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements ............................................................................................................ . ........................... l 0 

Required Supplementary Information: 

Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability ................................................................................................ 23 

Schedule of Pension Contributions ................................................................................................................................... 24 

Schedule of Changes in (~PEB Liability and Related Ratios ...............................................:............................................25 

Schedule of iJPEB Contributions ...................................................................................................................................... 2~ 

Item 6B. Attachment



Item 6B. Attachment



Moss, Levy & Har~zheim LLP 
Certified Public A ccountants 

INI)EP~NI3EI'~T AUDIT+URS' REP(,1R.T 

To the Board of Directors 
South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District 
Oceano, California 

Report on the Fïnancial Statements 

Vie have audited the accompanying financial statements ofhe South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District {District} as of and 
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 201 ~, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's 
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

l~n~irr,gen~en~'s Resp©~isibility far ilae ~i~zcrr~cicxl Srtate~zents 

li~Sanagement is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal 
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error. 

~ urlit~rs' .Respansibilrty  

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained 
in ~ave~nmentAudtingtcrndards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

0 n ~~~dit ,~~ .r~l~'e~ pvrf€~rrning proced'res to obtain audit e w'idence ú.bC3'Vtt the ai~C3',.~itu ~.nd discl;~sures ~n the financial statements. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement ofthe financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the 
entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we 
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

V4Te believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

C~pi~zioJz 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the 
South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District, as of June 30, 2019, and the respective changes in financial position and cash 
flows thereof for the fiscal year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

1 
2400 Professional Parkway, Suite 205 Santa Maria, CA 93455 Tel 805.925.2579 Fax 805.925.214? mlhcpas.com  

BEVERLY HILLS • CULVER ~(TY •SANTA MARIA 

Item 6B. Attachment



(1 t~i ~~ ~In~`ters 

R~quired Su~~lementar~y Inf©rn~a~xtion  

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and analysis on 
pages 3 through 5, the schedule of Proportionate Share of het Pension Liability on page 23, the schedule of Pension ~ontríbutions on 
page 24, the schedule of Changes in OPEB Liability and Related Ratios on page 25, and the schedule ofOPEB Contributions on page 
2~ be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, 
ís required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers ít to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. ~e have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods ofpreparing the information and comparing the information 
for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, of the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained 
during our audit ol: the basic financial statements. e do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because 
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

+ather R.eporting ~equired by ~~vertzrtient`~ud'itirz,~ ►~trr~idc~rt~s 

In accordance with overnrrZent Auditin,~ Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 8, 2020, on our consideration of the 
South San Luis Obispo County Santation District's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose ofthat report is to describe the 
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an 
opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with ~vernrnent Auditing Standards in considering the District's internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 

. ~ ~ ~ ~ ~, 
~ 

Santa  Daria,  CA 
January 8, 2020 

Item 6B. Attachment



SQUTH SAN LiJ1S oB1SPo COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT 
POST oFFICE Bo~C 389 

1000 ALOHA PLACE 
oC~ANo, CA 98475 

Management's Discussran and Analysis 
Fiscal Year finding June 0, 2g1 

The fallowing is a discussion of the consolidated financial condition and the results of 
operations of the South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District the District} far the 
year ending June 80, 2019. This discussion refers to and is qualified by information 
contained in the financial statements and in the notes to the financial statements. Thus, 
it should be read together with these statements in the Audit Report. The financial audit 
of the South San Luis Obispo County Sanitatir~n District has been performed by 11~~oss, 
Levy Hartzheim, CFAs, in accordance with tJ.S. generally accepted auditing 
standards. 

Financial Hiqhli~hts 
- r rr ~ir.r~r.... 

At June 30, 2019 the District's fatal net pasitian was X15.02 million. Fiscal Year 
2018 ended with a fatal net positïan of X12.02 million. This is an increase of 19°/© 
far net pasitian. 

• Total operating revenues increased by 8°f° from X4.97 miNion in 2018 to $5.14 
million at June 80, 2019. This increase  i  due to a rate increase that began an 
July 1ST 2018. 

Depreciation expense decreased 37°1© from $1.12 million in Fiscal Year 2018 to 
X817,09 thousand in Fiscal Year 2019. 

~►  Total operating expenses decreased by 18°I° from X4.04 million to $3.82 million. 

• Nan-operating revenues decreased Pram X384 thousand in Fiscal Year 201$ to 
X140 thousand in Fiscal Year 2019. The X334 thousand in non-operating 
revenues received in FY 2018 was uniquely high after receiving $222 thousand 
in settlement forgiveness Pram the Regional water Quality Control Board. These 
funds were recorded a non-operating income.  

i overall increase of cash and cash equivalents realised a 21 % increase from 
X0.44 million in Fiscal Year 2018 to X7.82 million in Fiscal year 2019. 

• Net cash provided by operating activities decreased 5°l° from $2.58 million in 
Fiscal year 2018 to X2.42 million in Fiscal Year 2019. 

Item 6B. Attachment



overview of the Financial Statements: 

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The statement of net 
position, statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position, and statement of 
cash flaws all provide information about the district's activities and present along-term 
view of its finances. 

These statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting which recognizes 
expenses when incurred and revenue when earned rather than when payment is made 
or received and is widely used by mast private seder companies. These statements 
also report on the C~istrict's net position and changes in the position resulting from the 
current years' activity. over time, increases or decreases in the C~istrict's net position is 
one indicator of whether its financial positien is improving or declining. 

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to 
maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or 
objectives. The C3istrict, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to 
ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements, The 
various funds are presented in the accompanying financial statements as a proprietary 
fund category, enterprise fund type. 

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is 
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the financial statements. The 
notes to the financial statements can be found on pages ~o-~~ of this report. 

other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying 
notes, this report also presents certain required supplementary information concerning 
the C~istrict's progress in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its 
employees. 

+government-wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a 
government's financial position. in the case of the C~istrict, net position increased from 

~ ~.~2 million at June o, o~ 8 to ~ 5.0~ miNion at the close of June o, ~g1 g. 

The largest portion of the net position, g. million as of June 30, ~{~~ 9, reflects its 
investment in capital assets e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment}, less any 
related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The Qistrict uses 
these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these fined capital 
assets are not available for future spending. Although the district's investment in its 
capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the monies needed 
to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets 
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

Business-type activities. 

The business-type activities increased the i~istrict's net position by $.4 million. The key 
elements are as follows: operating and non-operating revenues exceeded operating and 
non-operating expenses as of June ~o, X019. capital contributions to the C~istrict's 

0 

Item 6B. Attachment



system totaled X442 thousand as of June 3C~, 2C}19. The total revenues exceeded 
expenses during the ~Q~~9 fiscal year. The District's construction in progress value has 
been recorded as capitalized amounts as detailed in Note 4 on page 15. 

Capital asset and [debt ~4dminlstratian 

Capital Assets. The District's investments in capital assets for its business type 
activities as of June 39, 29~ 9 amounts to X9.5 million {net of accumulated depreciation 
and related debt}. This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and 
systems, improvements, machinery and equipment. 

Additional information on the south son Luis ~}bispo County sanitation District 
capital assets can be found in Nate ~ on page 1 of this  repari.  

Long-term liabilities. At the end of June ~, X019, the District held land-terra liabilities 
of compensated absences, (~PEB liability, and net pension liability. 

Additional information on the District's  Iang-term liabilities can be found in bates 
5, 6, and 7 on pages 15-22 of this report. 

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates 

financial Plan. Bartle Wells has been engaged to evaluate evolving .capital and 
maintenance needs and the District's ability to accommodate these needs within the 
existing rate structure. C1pon completion of the Updated financial Flan by Bartle Wells 
the District will consider financial strategies, including rate adjustments, to fulfill the 
financial demands of the District. 

Rate increase. The District implemented a series of annual rate increase beginning 
July ~ , 0 ~ ~ and ending July 1, ~~ 19. The new rates are designed to meet the District's 
operational and capital funding needs, comply with legal requirements and be fair to all 
customers. Rate increases wore phased in to minimize the annual impact on District 
customers. 

other Past-Employment Benefits. The District provides other past-employment 
benefits (C.~PEB} through the California Employers' Retiree Benefit fund which is 
administered by CaIPER In 2000, the District joined the CaIPER medical program. 
An actuarial was performed with a measurement date of June 30, 2017 to determine the 
District's C~PEB obligation. 

Requests far Infarmatian 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Routh son Luis 
t~bispo County Sanitation District's finances for all those with an interest in the 
government's finances. Questions concerning any of the information should be 
addressed to the District Administrator, south son Luis Obispo County Sanitation District 
1000 Aloha Place, C?ceano, CA 93445. 

S 
Item 6B. Attachment



SCIITTH SA1~T  LITIS  CIBISPCI CCIUI~TY SA1'+IITATICIN I)ISTRI+~T 
STATEMENT CAF I~1ET P~OSITIC~N - PRC}PRIETARY FUND 
June 30, 2019 

ASSETS 

Current Assets: 
Cash and investments 
Accounts receivable 
Interest receivable 
Prepaid expenses 

Total current assets 

Noncurrent Assets: 
Deposits 
Capital assets 

Land 
Construction in progress 
Property, plant & equipment 
Accumulated depreciation 
Total noncurrent assets 

Total assets 

I)EFER.R.ED CIUTFLCIWS CIF RESCIURC;ES 
Deferred pensions 
.Deferred C)PEB 

Total deferred outflows of resources 

LIABILI II~v.7 

Current Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Brine deposits 

Total current liabilities 

Long-Term Liabilities: 
Compensated absences 
Net pension liability 
Other post employment benefits 

Total long term liabilities 

Total liabilities 

DEFERRED II~TFLCIV~S CIF RESCIURC;ES 
Deferred pensions 
Deferred C~PEB 

Total deferred inflows of resources 

1~1ET PCISITICII~T 

Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted for capital expansion 
Unrestricted 

Total net position 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
6 

~ ?,820,800 

611,8?? 

16,103 

? 1,698 
8,520,4?8 

2, 922 

431,425 

2,?61,195 

25,411,?29 

(19,093,693) 
9,513,578 

18,034,056 

327,113 

69,690 

^~n~ nn~ 

240,?01 

14,220 

10,000 
264,921 

34,54? 

1,156,301 

1,?89,268 
2,980,116 

3,245,03? 

92,222 

69,224 

161,446 

9,510,656 

3,439,?48 

2,073,9?2 

$ 15,024,376 

Item 6B. Attachment



SOUTH SAN LL]IS O~ISPO COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT 
STATEIVIENT ©F REVENUES, ExPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION -
PR.OPRIETARY FUND 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Operating Revenues: 
Sewer services fees $ 5,139,093 

Total operating revenues 5,139,093 

Operating Expenses: 
Crross wages 702, 820 
Payroll taxes and benefits 55,523 

Employee benefits 155,994 

.Retirement contribution 238,755 

t~PEB expense 141,183 
Uniforms 12,070 
Repairs and maintenance 175,006 

Equipment rental 3,641 
Insurance 34,$12 
Depreciation 816, 716 

CCii"n~Tl.unlcatlollS ~ 3, ~ 39 

Utilities 239,424 

Property tax 3 0, 9 51 
Special services 126,753 

Office and supplies 12,669 
Fuel and oil 5,796 
I~►~Iembership, permits, and license fees 48,527 

Legal 91,439 
Accounting 29,023 
Plant chemicals, lab, and analysis 318,489 

Employee training 5,752 

Solids handling 44,417 

Small tools 15,684 

Total operating expenses 3,3  i  8,583 

Net operating income 1,820,510 

Nan-Operating Revenues (Expenses): 
Interest income 141,484 

Lease income 4,092 

Total non-operating revenues (expenses} 145,576 

Capital Contributi©ns: 
Connection fees 442,299 

Change in net position 2,408,3 85 

Net Position: 

Net position, beginning of fiscal year 12,615,991 

Net position, end of fiscal year $ 15,024,376 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
7 

Item 6B. Attachment



k70 V ~~ ~~~ ~ V l~ ~~~~~~ ~~ V ~~~ ►.7A~~ 1 ~~~iJl \ ~~►.3~~~~~ 

STATE1ViENT +QF  CASI-J FLC~WS - PRflPRIETI~R.Y F~:~Ni~ 
For the Fiscal ~ear Ended June 30, 201 ~ 

CASH FLOWS FROIVI OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Receipts from customers 
Payments to venders 
Payments to employees 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Lease income 

Net cash provided by nencapital financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL ANI3 RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Capital contributions 
Acquisition and construction of capital assets 

Net cash used by capital and related financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Interest received 

Net cash previded by investing activities 

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents, July 1, 2018 

Cash and cash equivalents, June 30, 2019 

$ 4,952,061 

{2,0 ~ 9,224) 

{548,044) 

n ~ rt a .-~ rn n 

4,092 

4,092 

442,299 

(1,628,397) 

{1,18aú98} 

137,073 

13 7,073 

1,379,860 

6,440,94fl 

7,820,800 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
8 

Item 6B. Attachment



SOUTH SAN LUIS QBISI'O BOUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT 
STATEMENT ~F CASH FLt~W~ - PRaPRIETARY FUND (Continued} 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 34, 2019 

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided 
by operating activities: 

Qperatng income 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net 

cash used by operating activities: 
Depreciation 

Prepaid expenses 
DepOS1tS 

Deferred outflows 4f resources relating to pensions 
Deferred outflows of resources relating to ~PEB 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Compensated absences 
~PEB liability 
Net pension liability 
Deferred inflows of resources relating to pensions 
Deferred inflows of resources relating t4 flPEE 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

$ 1,824,510 

81b,71ó 

(187,344) 

(1,484) 

~,~ l~ 

101,9bb 

3,41 ~ 

(224,177} 

b,11b 
15,207 

(1, I47} 
(19,901) 

19,895 

b9,224 

$ 2,424,793 

Change in assets, deferred outflows,liabilities, and deferred inflows: 
Accounts receivable 

T`he notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
9 

Item 6B. Attachment



SOUTH SAN LUIS oBISFo ~oUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT 
Nt~TES T(~  BANC  FII~IANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, X019 

NOTE I - REPORTII~+TO ENTITY 

The reporting entity is the South San LUIS ~Íb1sp0 County Sanitat~on DiStrlct. The D1strlCt Is responsible f©r trürl~C nlaln anti. set~Ver 
pipes from the Cities of Arroyo +Grande, Grover Beach, and the C~ceano Communifiy Services District. The District is governed by a 
three-member body, known as the District Board, who are appointed by the respective member agencies on a yearly basis. The 
District Board includes one representative from each of its Member Agencies, specifically, the City ofArroyo Grande, City of Grover 
Beach and the C~ceano Community Services District. The District provides wastewater disposal services. 

There are no component units included. in this report which meet the criteria ofGovernmental Accounting Standards Board {GASB) 
Statement No. 14, The Financial ~e~QYting Entity, as amended by GASB Statements No, 3~, No. 61 and No. 80. 

NOTE 2- SU1ViMARY OF SI+GNIFI~ANT A~~OUNTINO EOLI~IES 

A. Accounting Policies -The accounting policies of the District conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board and the American Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants. 

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 199, are generally followed in 
the proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector 
guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The District has elected not 
to follow subsequent private-sector guidance. 

B. Accounting iVlethod -The District is organized as an .Enterprise Fund and follows the accrual method of accounting, 
whereby revenues are recorded as earned, and expenses are recorded when incurred. 

C. Fund Financial Statements - The fund financial statements provide information about the District's proprietary fund. 

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions associated with the 
principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal 
values. Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings, result from nonexchange transactions or 
ancillary activities. 

D. Proprietary Fund Type 

Enterprise Fund 

Enterprise fund is used to account for operations {a) that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business 
enterprises —where t11e intent of the governing body is that the costs {expenses, including depreciation} of providing goods 
01-  services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or ~b}where 
the governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/ar net income is 
appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes. 

E. Cash and Cash Equivalents -For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include restricted and 
unrestricted cash and restricted and unrestricted certificates of deposit with original maturities of three months or less. 

F. Property, Plant, and Equipment - Capital assets purchased by the District are recorded at cost. Contributed or donated 
capital assets are recorded at fair value when acquired. 

G. Depreciation — Capital assets owned by the District are depreciated over their estimated useful lives (ranging from 5-40 
years} under the straight-line method of depreciation. 

10 
Item 6B. Attachment



SOUTH SAi`~ LUIS OBISPO COUI~iTY SANITATION DISTRICT 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 3 0, 2O l ~ 

NOTE 2- SUIVIMAII~Y OF SI+~NIFICAI'~iT ACCOUNTII`~IG POLICIES (Coníinued~ 

H. Receivables - The District did not experience bad debt losses; accordingly, no adjustment has been made for doubtful 
accounts, and accounts receivable is shown at the adjusted value. 

Encumbrances - Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods or services. 
Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the expenditure of resources 
are recorded to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is not utilized by the District. 

J. Compensated Absences - Accumulated unpaid employee vacation and sick leave benefits are recognized as liabilities ofthe 
District. The amounts are included ín current liabilities. 

~. Restricted Assets -Restricted assets are financial resources segregated for a special purpose such as construction of 
improvements and financing ofdebt obligations. These assets are for the benefit of a distinct group and as such are legally 
or contractually restricted. 

L. I.~se of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America, as prescribed by the +~ASB and the AICPA, requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the 
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported period. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

M. Net Position 

CJASB Statement No. 63, requires that the difference between assets added to the deferred outflows of resources and 
liabilities be added to the deferred inflows of resources be reported as net position. Net  position is classified as either net 
investment in capital assets, restricted, or unrestricted. 

Net position that is net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, and reduced by 
the outstanding principal of related debt. Restricted net position is the portion of net position that has external constraints 
placed on them by creditors, grantors, contributors, laws, or regulations of other governments, or through constitutio nal 
provisions, or enabling legislation. Unrestricted net position consists of net position that does not meet the definition of net 
investment in capital assets or restricted net position. 

N. Pensions 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflawslinflows of resources related to pensions, and 
pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation 
District's Public Employee's Retirement System (CalPERS) plan Plan} and additions to/deductions from the Plan 
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit 
payments (including refunds of employee contributions} are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the 
benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 

O. Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 

Pursuant to OASB Statement No. 63, `Financial Reporting of Deferred Oz~tflows of Resources, Deferred .Inflows of 
Resources, and 1Vet Position," and OASB Statement No. 65, "Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, „ the 
District recognizes deferred outflows and inflows of resources. 

In addition to assets, the Statement of Diet Position will sometimes report a separate section . for deferred outflows of 
resources. A deferred outflow of resources is defined as a consumption of net position by the government that is applicable 
to a future reporting period. The District has two items which qualify far reporting in this category; refer to Note b and Note 
7 for a detailed listing of the deferred outflows of resources the District has reported. 

11 
Item 6B. Attachment



StJLJTH SA1`+l LUIS {JBISF+~ ~(JUNTY SAIYITAi"I~.~►1'~I I}I~TI~I~T 
NGTES T+D BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2019 

I~ïUTE 2- SLTI1jiMARY ÚF SI~I'~IFICAI`~]~T A~~C)UI~TIN+~ I'f~LI~IES {~c~ntinuedj 

fJ. Deferred ~}utflows and Inflows of Resources (Continued 

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of 
resources. A deferred inflow of resources is defined as an acquisition of net position by the District that is applicable to a 
future reporting period. The District has two items which qualifies for reporting in this category; refer to Note 6 and. Note 7 
for a detailed listing of the deferred inflows of resources the District has reported. 

P. Qther Postemployment Benefits ~C~PEB) 

Far purposes of measuring the net flPEB liability  anà  deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to C~PEB, and OPEB 
expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the District's plan {C)PEB plan] and additions to/deductions front the 
Plans' fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis. For this purpose, benefit payments are recognized 
when due and payable ín accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 

Q. Future Accounting Pronouncements 

GASB Statements listed below will be implemented in future financial statenr~nts 

Staterr~ent No. $4 "Ftductary Activltles" The provisions ofthis statement are effective 

for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 201$. 

Staterr~nt No. $7 "Leases" 

Statement No. $9 "Accounting for Interest host Incurred 

before the End of a Construction 

Period" 

Statement No. 90 "Majority Equity Interests-an 

Arndment of GASB Statements No. 
14 and No. ~1►, 

Statement No. 91 "Conduit Debt C)bligatians" 

NC)TE 3 - ~ASI-I ANT~ INVE~TNiEI'YT~  

The provisions ofthis staterr~nt are effective 

for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019. 

The provisions ofthis statement are effective 

for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019. 

The provisions ofthis statement are effective 

for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 201$. 

The provisions ofthis statement are effective 

for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020. 

Investments are carried at fair value in accordance with GASB Statement No. 31. C)n June 30, 2019, the District had the fallowing 
cash and investments on hand:  

Cas  h on hand $ ~5 
Cash in  Bany 177,710 
Cash and investments with County Treasurer 5,123,095 
Local Agency Investment Fund {LAIFj 2,519,930 

Total cash and investment $ 7,$20,$00 

12 
Item 6B. Attachment



SOUTH SAN LUIS QBISPI~ CC.}UNTY SAITATItJN DISTRICT 
NOTES TO BASF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2019 

NOTE 3 - SASH AND INVESTMENTS {~ontinueà} 

The District categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting 
principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. These principles recognize a 
three-tiered fair value hierarchy. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets, Level 2 inputs are significant 
other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. The District had investments in the San Luis Obispo 
County Investment Pool and the Local Agency Investment Fund, however, those external pools are not measured under Level 1, 2 or 
3. 

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code 

Tíze table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the District by the California Government Code. The table also 
identifies certain provisions of the California Government Code that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration ofcredit 
risk. 

Maximum Maximum. 
Authorized Maximum Percentage Investment 

Investment Type Maturity Of Portfolio in One Issuer 

Local Agency Bonds 
U.S. Treasury Obligations 
Federal Agency Securities 
.Bankers' Acceptances 
Commercial Paper 
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 
Repurchase and Reverse Repurchase 

Agreements 
Medium-Term Notes 
Mutual Funds 
Money Market Mutual Funds 
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities 
County Pooled Investment Fund 
Local Agency Investment Fund {LATE} 
State Registered ~̀r'arrants, Í~aTotes, or 

Bonds 
Notes and Bonds of other Local 

California Agencies 

Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate ~.isk 

5 years Done None 
~ years None None 

N/A None None 
180 days 40%° 30°f° 
270 days 25°/© 10% 
5 years 3 0°l° None 

92 days 20% of base value None 
5 years 30%° None 
5 years 15% 10% 

N/A Done None 
NlA 20%° None 
NIA None None 
N/A None Done 

5 years None None 

5 years None None 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. Generally, the 
longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. One of the ways 
that the .District manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter term and longer term investments 
and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity evenly over time as 
necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations. 

13 Item 6B. Attachment



~OI..TTH SAI~ LUIS C)~ISPtI Ct~UiYTY ~AI~dITATIC)1~ DISTRICT 
NGTES TC) BAS1C FINAI`~CIAL STATEMEI`~TS 
June 30, 2019 

I~OTE 3- CA~I~ AND II~VE~i'IViENTS {Continued} 

Disclosures F~elating to Interest Rate disk ~Continued~ 

Information about the sensitivity ofthe fair values of the District's investments to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the 
following table that shows the distribution of the District's investments by maturity: 

Remaining Maturity (i.n Months) 

Carey ing 12 Months 13 - 24 25 - 60 More than ~0 
Investment Type Amount or Less M~nth~ Mnnthc Mnnth~ 

San Luis {~bispo Investment Pool ~ 5,123,095 ~ 5,123,095 $ 

State Investrr~nt Pool {LA IF) 2,519,930 2,519,930 
- 

~ ï,b43,025 ~ ~,~43,a25 ~ -  ~ - ~ -  

Disclosures Relating to Credit Disk 

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the bolder of the investment. This is 
measured by the assignment of rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. Presented below is the minimum 
rating required by where applicable) the California +Government Code and the District's investment policy, and the actual rating as of 
fiscal year end for each investment type. 

Rating as of Fiscal Year End 

Investment Type 

San Luis C)bispo Investment Pool 
State Investment Pool (LATE) 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

Minimum 
Carly ing Legal 
Amount Rating  AAA Aa Boa Not Rated 

$ 5,123,095 NiA $ - ~ - $ - $ 5,123,095 

2,519,930 N/A 2,519,930 
~ 7,f 43,025 $ - $ - $ _ $ ~,~43,025 

The investment policy of the District contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one issuer beyond that 
stipulated by the California Government Code. There are no investments in any one issuer that represent 5% or more of total District 
investments. 

Custodial Credit Risk 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a government will not 
be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The 
custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event ofthe failure ofthe counterparty e.g., broker-dealer} to a transaction, 
a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. 
The California Government Code and the District's investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the 
exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than the following provision for deposits: The California 
Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities 
in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law {unless so waived by the governmental  uniu.  The fair 
value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110°~~ of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. 
California law also allows financial institutions to secure the District's deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a 
value of 150% of the secured public deposits. 

As of June 30, 201, none of the District's deposits with financial institutions in excess of federal depository ïnsurance limits were 
held in uncollateralized accounts. 

14 
Item 6B. Attachment



SOUT~I SAN LUIS t~BISPU CC}UNTY SANITATIt)N DISTRICT  
NATES  TÚ BASF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2~ l9 

NOTE 3 - +l✓ASH AND II~ivESTMEI~ITS {Continued} 

Investment ïn State Pool (LAIF 

The District is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund {LAIF} that is regulated by the California government 
Code under the oversight ofthe Treasurer of the State of California. The fair value of the District's investment in this pool is reported 
in the accompanying financial statements at amounts based upon the District's pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for 
the entire LAIF portfolio {in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the 
accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. 

NÚTE 4 - SC~IEDULE C}F CAPITAL ASSETS 

A schedule of changes in capital assets and depreciation for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, is shown bel©~v: 

Balance Balance 
July 1, 2018 Additions Deletions Transfers June 30, 2019 

Land $ 431,425 $ - $ - $ - $ 431,425 
Construction in Progress 2,551,346 1,374,362 (1,164,513} 2,761,195 
Properly, Plant, 8~ Equipment 23,993,181 254,035 I, 1. 64,513 25,411,729 

Total capital assets 26,975,952 1,628,397 28,604,349 

Less Accumulated Depreciation {18,276,977} {816,716} {19,093,693) 

Diet capital assets $ 8,698,975 $ 811,681 $ - $ - $ 9,S1ú,656 

NINE ~ -- L()N+~-TERM LIABILITIES 

The changes in long-term liabilities at June 30, 2019, are as follows: 

Balance Balance Due within 
July 1, 2018 Additions Retirements June 30, 2019 Qne year 

Compensated Absences $ 19,340 $ 36,346 $ {21,139) $ 34,547 $ - 

t~PEB 1,790,415 66,865 (68,012) 1,789,268 

I~1et Fens ion Liak~ iíity 1,176,202 78,318 {98,219} 1,156,301 

Total $ 2,985,957 $ 181,529 $ (187,370} $ 2,980,116 $ - 

NCl►TE & — DEFINED BENEFIT PENSIQN PLAN 

A. General Information about the Pension Plans 

Plan T escriptzons 

All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the District's Miscellaneous Employee Pension 
Plans, cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit plans administered by the California Public Employees' Retirement System 

{CaIPEIIZS}. Benefit provisions under the Plans are established by State statue and District resolution. CaIPERS issues publicly 

available reports that include a full description of the pension plans regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and membership 

information that can be found on the CaIPERS website. 

15 
Item 6B. Attachment



St~UTH SAN LUIS {)BISI'~l ~f)UNT~ SALITATI~N DISTIZI+CT 
NOTES TO BASIC FII'~A~i'~tCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2019 

NOTE 6 —DEFILED BENEFIT PENSItJN PLAN ~antinued} 

A. General Information about the Pension Plans {Continued) 

f~ene~ts P~ovided 

CaIPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and death benefits to plan members, 
who trust be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full time 
employment. Members with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits. All members 
are eligible for nonduty disability benefits after 10 years of service. The death benefit is one of the following: the Basic Death 
Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2w Death Benefit. The cost of living adjustments for each plan are 
applied as specified by the Public Employees' Retirement Law. 

The Plans' provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2019, are summarized as follows: 

Miscellaneous 

Prior to On or affer 

C©t~tYibz~ti©ns  

Dire Date 
Benefit formula 
Benefit vesting schedule 
Benefit payments 
Retirement age 
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 
Required employee contribution rates 
Required employer contribution rates 

January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013 

2.0°i©~ 60 ~°r° ~ 62 

5 years service 5 years service 
monthly for life monthly for life 

50-63 52-67 

1.09%° to 2.42% I.0°/© to 2.5% 

7.95% 6.25% 

10.022%+f4,233 6.842%+ $399 

Section 20814{c) of the California .Public Employees' Retirement Law requires that the employer contribution rates for all public 
employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the 
rate. Funding contributions for the Plan is determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CaIPERS. The actuarially 
determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an 
additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The District is required to contribute the difference between the 
actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate ofemployees. Contributions to the pension plan from the District were $136,795 

for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. 

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

At June 30, 2019, the District reported a liability of $1,156,301 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net 
pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2018 and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was 
determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017 rolled forward to June 30, 2018 using standard update procedures. The 
District's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the :District's long-term share of contributions to the 
pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all Pension Plan participants, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2018, the 
District's proportion was 0.03068%, which increased by 0.00084% from June 30, 2017. 

For the year ended June 30, 2419, the District recognized pension expense of $238,755. Pension expense represents the change in 
the net pension liability during the measurement pe~•iod, adjusted for actual contributions and the deferred recognition ofchanges in 
investment gain/loss, actuarial gainlloss, actuarial assumptions or method, and plan benefits. At June 30, 2019, the District reported 
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pension from the following sources: 

16 
Item 6B. Attachment



St1UTH SA,I~1 LUIS t~BISP~ C~IITI~TY SANITATI~JN I)ISTRI~T 
NOTES TO BASF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2019 

I~t(JTE f— DEFII~EI) BE1~IEFIT P`ENSIC}i'wi FLAi~i {~ontinued} 

B. Pension L~abilitles, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflowsllnflows of Resources Related to Pensions (Continued} 

Referred 
Outflows of 
.Resources 

Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date $ 136,795 

Rifferences between expected and actual experience 44,365 
Changes in assumptions 131,822 

I~et difference between projected and actual earnings on 
retirement plan investments 5,716 
Adjustment due to differences in proportions 8,415 
Rifference in actual contributions and proportionate 
share of contributions 

Referred Inflows 
of Resources 

$ - 

15,097 

32,307 

7,888 

36,930 

$ 327,113 ~ 92,222 

136,795 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from District contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 3d, 2020. Other amounts 
reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in the pension 
expenses as follows: 

_. 

Fiscal dear 
Ended June 30 Amount 

2020 $ 100,41 

2021 51,230 

2022 {43,154} 

2023 (l 0,399} 

~ 98,096 

Actuarial As~sunaptians 

The total pension liability in the June 30, 2018 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions: 

Miscellaneous 
June 30, 2017 

June 30, 2018 
Entry-Age I~on~na.l Cost Method 

7.15% 

2.SQ°/© 

Varies by Entry Age and Service 
7.0% Net of Pens ion Plan Investment and 
Administrative Expenses; includes Inflation 
Derived using CaIPERS' Membership Data for a[1 Funds 
Contract COLA up to 2.50°/a until Purchasing .Power 
Protection Allowance Floor on Purchasing Power applies, 
2.75% therea~er. 

Valuation Rate 
Meas urerrnt Date 
Acturial Cost Method 
Actuarial Assumptions 

Riscount Rate 
Inflation 
Salary Increases 
Investment Rate ofReturn 

Mortality Rate Table (1} 
Post Retirement Benefit 
Increase 

(1) The mortality table used was developed based on Ca1PERs' specific data. 

The table includes 15 yars of mortality improvements using 90% scale MP 2~ 16 

published by the Societ of Actuaries. For more details on this table, please refer to 

the 2417 experience study. 

17 
Item 6B. Attachment



S+Q[TTH SA1~  LITIS  QBISPC.~ C(II.JNTY SAI~ITATIt~I~ DISTRICT 
NOTES TQ BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 201 ~ 

Nt~TE ~— DEFI1~íED BENEFIT PEI'~SI~N PLAI~ (Cantinued) 

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions {Continued) 

Change in Assumptions 

In December 2017, the CaIPERS Board adapted new mortality assumptions for plans participating ïn the Public Employees' 
Retirement Fund {PEKE}. The mortality table was developed from the December 2017 experience study and includes 15 years of 
projected ongoing mortality improvement using 90 percent scale MP 201 ~ published by the Society of Actuaries. The inflation 
assumption was reduced from 2.75 percent to 2.50 percent. The assumptions for individual salary increases and overall payroll 
growth were reduced from 3.00 percent to 2.75 percent. 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15%. To determine whether the municipal bond rate should be used 
in the calculation of a discount rate for public agency plans {including PERF C}, CaIPERS stress tested plans that would mast likely 
result in a discount rate that would be different from the actuarially assumed discount rate. Based on the testing, none of the tested 
plans run out ofassets. Therefore, the current 7.15 percent discount rate ïs adequate and the use of the municipal bond rate calculation 
is not necessary. The long term expected discount rate of 7.15 percent will be applied to all plans in the Public Employees Retirement 
Fund, including PERF C. The stress test results are presented in a detailed report called "GASB Crossover Testing Report" that can be 
obtained at CaIPERS' websïte under the GASB No. ~8 section. 

Ca1PERS ïs scheduled to review alí actuarial assumptions as part of its regular Asset Liability Management {ALM}review cycle that 
is scheduled to be completed in February 2022. Any changes to the discount rate will require Board action and proper stakeholder 
outreach. For these reasons, Ca1PERS expects to continue using a discount rate net of administrative expenses for GASB No. b7 and 
No. ~8 calculations through at least the 2021-22 fiscal year. Ca1PERS will continue to check the materiality of the difference in 
calculation until such time as we have changed our methodology. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using abuilding-black method in which best-
estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return {expected returns, net pension plan investment expense and inflation) are 
developed for each major asset class. 

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, Ca1PERS took into account bath short-term and long-term market return 
expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical returns of all the funds' asset classes, expected 
compound returns were calculated over the short-term {first 10 years) and the long-term { 11-60 years) using abuilding-block 
approach. Using the expected nominal returns for bath short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits were calculated for 
each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present 
value of benefits for cash flaws as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was 
then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent. 

The table on the following page reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was calculated 
using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation. These rates of return are net of 
administrative expenses. 

18 
Item 6B. Attachment



SC►UTH SAN LUIS (~BIS.PC? COUNTY SANITATION I?ISTRI+CT 
NC}TES TO BASIC FINAI~iCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2019 

I~OTE f— I~EFINELI BENEFIT PENSION PLAN  (Cantin  ued) 

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (Continued} 

Dise©unt Rate (Continued~ 

Asset Class 

+Global Eel u ity 
global Fixed income 
Inflation Sensitive 
Private .Equity 
Peal Estate 
Llq u 1d Ity 

Total 

New 
Strategic Real Return Real Return 

Allocation Years 1-10(a) Years 11+(b) 

50.0% 4.80% 5 , 98% 

28.0% 1.00% 2.~2% 

0.0% 0.77% I.81 % 

8.0% x.30% 7.23% 

13.0% 3.75% 4.93% 

I.0% 0.00% -0.92°/© 

100% 

(a} An expected inflation of 2.00% used for this period. 
(b) An expected inflation of 2.92% used for this period. 

Sensitivity of the Praportionate ~`hare o, f the Net Pension Liabiliíy to Changes in the L~ise©unt Rate 

The following represents the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 7.15 

percent, as well as what the District's proportionate share of í11e net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount 

rate that is 1-percentage point lower (6.15 percent) or 1-percentage point higher (8.15 percent} than the current rate: 

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase 
~ 1 cni ~ ~ cni a 7 Cn~ 

District's prop©rti©Hate share of the net 
pens ion p tan liability $ 1,77,190 ~ 1,15,301 $ 644,592 

.Pension Plan Fiduciary met Position 

.Detailed information about the pension plan's f~d.uciary net position is available in the separately issued CaIPERS financial reports. 

~. Payable to the Pension Plan 

At June 30, 2019, the District had no amount outstanding for contributions to the pension plan required for the fiscal year ended June 

30, 2019. 

19 
Item 6B. Attachment



SOUTH SAN ~uiS C}BISPO ~OLINTY SAN~TATION ~► ~STR~~T 
NDTES TC) ~ASIC FII~1A1`~CIAL STATEME~ITS 
June 30, 201 ~ 

NOTE 7 —POST EIYiPLOYTVIENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS 

Plan Description 

The District provides post-retirement health benefits to all retirees with five years of service who retire from the District, and must 
have reached the minimum age of50. Benefits continue for the lifetime of the retiree. No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets 
the criteria in paragraph 4 of ~ASB Statement 75. 

Employees Covered 

As of the June 30, 2018, actuarial valuation, the f©flowing current and former employees were covered by the benefit terms under the 
District's Pfan: 

.Active plan members 
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 

Total 15 

The District currently finances benefits on apay-as-you-go basis.  

i' : ..  

The District's C)PEB liability was measured as of June 3©, 2018 and the total DPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation 
dated June 30, 2017 that was rolled forward to determine the June 30, 2fl 1$ total C~PEB liability, based on the following assumptions: 

Discount Rate 3.80% 

inflation 2.75°l~ 

Salary Increases 2.75°/fl 

Healthcare Trend Rate 4.00% 

Mortality Rate Derived from 2014 CaIPERS Active Mortality 

for Miscellaneous ~~nployees 

Pre-Retirement Turnover 200 Ca1PERS Turnover for Miscellaneous employees. 

Actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018 valuation were based on a review ofplan experience during the period July 1, 
2015 to June 30, 2017. 

The long-term expected rate ofreturn on C)PEB plan investments was determined using a buifding-block method in which best-
estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return {expected returns, net of investment expense and inflation} are developed 
for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the 
expected future real r ates ofreturn by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. To achieve the 
goal set by the investment policy, plan assets will be managed to earn, on a long-term basis, a rate of return equal to or in 
excess of the target rate of return of 3.80 percent. 

Change ©f assumptions. The discount rate was increased from 3.50 percent to 3.80 percent. 

Discount rate. ~ASB 75 requires a discount rate that reflects the following: 

a} The long-term expected rate ofreturn on C~PEB Pían investments to the extent that the OPEB plan's fiduciary net 
position {if any} is projected to be sufficient to make projected benefit payments and assets are expected to be 
invested using a strategy to achieve that return; 

b) A yield or index rate for 20-year, tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or 
higher to the extent that the conditions in {a} are not met. 

To determine a resulting single {blended} rate, the amount of the plan's projected fiduciary net position (if any) and the amount 
of projected benefit payments is compared in each period of projected benefit payments. The discount rate used to measure the 
District's total C~PEB liability is based on these requirements and the following information: 

20 
Item 6B. Attachment



St~LTTH SAN LUIS ~BISPO COUNTY SANITATIt~Ì~ DISTRICT 
NOTES TCJ .BASIC FI~+TAI~CIAL STATEMENTS 
June ~~}, 2019 

NOTE 7 —POST EPLOYIVILNT BENEFITS QTHER THAN PENSIONS {Continued} 

C~PEB Liability (Continued 

Discount bate (continued) 

Lung Tenn Municipal 
Effected .Return 20 Year High Grade 

Rep©rung Date Measurement Date of Plan Investrr~ents Rate Index Discount Rate 

June 34. 2019 June 30, 2018 3.80% 3.84% 3.84% 

June 34. 2018 June 34, 2017 3.50% 3.54% 3.54% 

Changes in the C)PEB Liability 

Total 

~PEB 

Liability 

Balance at June 30, 2018 

{Valuation Date, June 30, 2Q 18} $ 1,790,415 

Changes recognized far the measurement period: 

Service cost 75,51 ~ 

Interest 68,178 

Changes of assumptions {76,832) 

Contributions - employer 

Net investment income 

Benefit payments {68,012} 

Net Changes { 1,147} 

Balance at June 30, 2419 

{Measurement Date, June 3Q, 2018} $ 1,789,268 

Sensitivity of the oP~B liability to changes in the discount gate. The following presents the net C~PEB liability, as well as what the net 
C)PEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower {2.80 percent} or 1-percentage- 
point higher {x.80 percent) than the cui~-ent discount rate: 

1°/© Decrease Current Rate 1%Increase 

2.80% 3.84% 4.80°/v 

C)PEB Liab iiity $ 2,453,723 $ 1,789,268 $ 1,569,943 

21 
Item 6B. Attachment



S{)[JTH SAN LiJI~ ~}BI~P~1 ~OUNTY SANITATIUN i}I~TI~.ICT 
NOTES TC~ BA~I~ FII~iAN~IAL ~TATEIViEI~TS 
June 30, 2019 

NtJTE 7 — PQST EIYIPLt3~NIENT BEI~EFITS C~TI-IER THAN PENSI()N~ {~©ntinued) 

O~PEB Liability~~ontinued~  

Sensitivity df the C~~~B liability tQ changes in the healthcare Mend rates. The following presents the t~PEB liability, as well as what 
the C~PEB íïability would be ifit were calculated using a healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage point lower (3.00 percent) or 
í -percentage-point higher {5.00 percent) than the current healthcare cost trend rates: 

Healthcare 
host Trend 

1%Decrease Rate 1°/© Increase 
{b.+~o%°) {4.00%} {S.00%} 

C~PF~ Liability $ 1,555,386 $ í,7$9,2e $ 2,067,927 

C)PEB Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 1Zeíated to ~?PEB 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2oí 9, the District recognized C~PEB expense of $141,183. As of the fiscal year ended June 30, 
201.9, the District reported deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to (JPEB from the following sources: 

Deferred Qutflows Deferred Inflows of 
of Resources Resources 

DPEB contributions subsequent to measurerr~ent date $ 69,690 $ - 
~hange in assumptions 69,224 
Net difFerence between projected and actual earnings ors 
retirerr~nt plan investments 

$ 69,690 $ 69,224 

Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources above represent the unamortized portion of chanties to CJPEB 
liability to be recognized. in future periods in a systematic and rational manner. $69,690 reported as deferred outflows of resources 
related to {~PEB resulting from District contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the 
C~PEB liability in the year ended .lone 30, 2020. ether amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to OPEB will be recognized in the pension expense as follows: 

Fiscal year F~nding June 30, Amount 

2020 $ {7,608) 

2021 (7,608) 

2022 {7,608} 

2022 {7,608) 

2023 {7,608} 

Thereaf~er {31,184} 
$ {69,224} 

NOTE S — Cf~MITIVIENTS ANA CCJNTINGENCIES 

According to the District" s staff and attorney, no .contingent liabilities are outstanding and no lawsuits are pendnti of any real 
financial consequence. 

22 
Item 6B. Attachment



~~C~~iIRED SUPPLEti~E[~TARY INFCJRMA,TIQ~t 

Item 6B. Attachment



Item 6B. Attachment



SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTS SAI'dITATIfJN DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIAf3ILIT~ 

Last 10 dears ~ 

As of June 30, 2019 

The following table provides required supplementary information regarding the District's Pension Plan. 

Proportion of the net pension liability 

Proportionate share of the net pension liability 

Covered payroll 

Proportionate share of the net pension liability as 
percentage of covered payroll 

Plan's total pension liability 

Plan's fiduciary net position 

.Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 
total pension liability 

0.01200% 0.01186% 0.01163% O.OI 117% 

$ I,156,301 ~ 1,176,202 $ 1,006,552 $ 766,801 

$ 762,177 $ 776,359 ~ 648,335 $ 512,06 í 

151.7% 15 í.5% 155.3% 149.7% 

$ 38,944,855,364 ~ 37,í61,348,332 ~ 33,358,627,624 $ 31,771,217,402 

~ 29,308,589,559 ~ 27,244,095,376 ~ 24,705,532,291 ~ 24,907,305,87 í 

75.26% 73.31 % 74.06% 78.40°/© 

2015 

Proportion of the net pension liability 

Proportionate share of the net pension liability 

Covered payroll 

Proportionate share of the net pension liability as 
percentage of covered payroll 

Plan's total pension liability 

Plan's fiduciary net position 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 
total pension liability 

~ 5 56, í í 3 

$ 496,070 

Ií2.l% 

~ 30,829,966,631 

~ 24,607,502,515 

79.82% 

Hates to Schedule: 

Cllan~es in assumptions 
In 2018, inflation was changed from 2.75 percent to 2.50 percent and individual salary increases and overall payroll growth was 
reduced from 3.00 percent to 2.75 percent. 

In 2017, as part of the Asset Liability Management review cycle, the discount rate was changed from 7.65 percent to 7.15 percent. 

In 2016, the discount rate was changed from 7.5 percent (net of administrative expense} to 7.65 percent to correct for an 
adjustment to exclude administrative expense. 

ín 2015, amounts reported as changes in assumptions resulted primarily from adjustments to expected ages of general 
employees. 

*- Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation, thus only five years are shown. 

23 

Item 6B. Attachment



~(lUT'H ~AI~I I.EI,TI~ t~~ISP(~ CQ~dT3' ~AI~ITATIi~N I~I~TRICT 
SCH~DUI~E fl!F PEI~TSIt~I~1 C{~►I`~TRIBLITI~NS 
Last 10 dears 
As of June 30, ZU 19 

Thé following table provides required supplementary information regarding the District's Pension Plan. 

2019 2018 2017 2016 

Contractually required contribution {actuarially determined} 

Contribution in relation to the actuarially determined 
contributions 
Contribution deficiency (excess} 

Covered payroll 

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 

Contractually required contribution {actuarially determined) 

Contribution in relation to the actuarially determined 
contributions 
Contribution deficiency {excess} 

Covered payroll 

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 

dotes to Schedule 

136,795 $ 98,219 $ 104,648 $ 77,019 

136,795 98,219 104,648 77,019 
____ 

~ - $ - $ - $ - 

~ 702,820 $ 762,177 ~ 776,539 $ 648,335 

19.46% 12.89°/© 13.48% 11.$8% 

201 _5 

$ 48,422 

48,422 

~ 512,061 

9.46% 

Valuation Date: 6/30/2014 

Actuarial cost method Entry Age Formal 

Asset valuation method 5-year smoothed market 

Amortization method The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is amortized 
over an open 17 year period as a level percentage 
of payroll. 

Discount rate 7.50°/Q 

Amortization growth rate 3.75% 
Price inflation 3.25%° 

Salary increases 3.75°/©plus merit component based on employee 
classification and years of service 

Mortality Sex distinct RP-2000 Combined Mortality 
projected to 2010 using Scale AA with a 2 year 
setback for males and a 4 year setback for 
females. 

Valuation Date: 6/30/2016 6/30/2015 

Discount Rate: 7.375% 7.65% 

~`- Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only five years are shown. 
24 

Item 6B. Attachment



2019 2~~ 8 

$ 75,519 $ 73,498 

68,178 60,374 

(76,$32) 

{68,012} 

(1,147} 

1,790,415 

~ 1,`789,268 

~ 762,177 

234.76°/© 

~ 
(65,396} 

68,476 

1,721,939 

~ 1,790,415 

~ 776,359 

230.62% 

s~~T~ s~~ ~~~5 a~~sPo Co~~vTY ~A~~T~TIa~ ~~sT~~~T 
SCHEDULE C)F CHAI~~ES IN QFEB LIABILITY Al'~I~ RELATED RATI{JS 

Last 10 Years* 

As of June 30, 2019 

Total Q1'EB Liability 
Service cost 

Interest on the total {3PEB liability 

Actual and expected experience difference 

Changes in assumptions 
Benefit payments 

Net change in total ~PEB Liability 

Total ©1~EB liability -beginning 
Total OPEB liability -ending 

Covered payroll 

Total ~PEB liability as a percentage of covered payroll 

*- Fiscal year 2018 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only two years are shown. 

25 

Item 6B. Attachment



S~}UT~ ~AI~i LIJI~ ~BISPt~ C(~[TNTY SAI~ITATI~~ I~I~TRICT 
SCHEI~[JLE t)F flPEB CC~NTRIBUT'I(~I~S 
Last 1 ~ Years* 
As ~f June 30, 2~ ~9 

The District's contribution for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 was $9,690. The District did not have an actuary calculate 
the Actuarially Determined Contribution for the fiscal year ended June ~0, 2019, therefore the District does not need to comply 
with C~ASB 75's Required Supplementary Information requirements. 

The  Districtes  contribution for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 was 13,106. The District did not have an actuary calculate 
the Actuarially Determined Contribution for the f seal year ended June 30, 2018, therefore the District does not need to comply 
with ~ASB 75's Required Supplementary Information requirements. 

- Fiscal year 2018 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only two years are shown. 

26 

Item 6B. Attachment



 
 
 
 

This page left intentionally blank. 



Item 6C. Page 1 
 

 

SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY 
SANITATION DISTRICT 

Post Office Box 339, Oceano, California 93475-0339 
1600 Aloha Oceano, California 93445-9735 

Telephone (805) 489-6666 FAX (805) 489-2765 
www.sslocsd.org 

 
             

STAFF REPORT 
 
Date:    February 5, 2020 
 
To:        Board of Directors 
 
From:   Jeremy Ghent, District Administrator 
 
Via:  Mychal Jones, Plant Superintendent 
 
Subject: AWARD FOR PRIMARY CLARIFIER NO. 2 REHABILITATION AND 

COATINGS PROJECT TO FLUID RESOURCE MANAGEMENT  
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 

1. Award a contract for installation and construction of the Primary Clarifier No. 2 
Rehabilitation and Coatings Project to Fluid Resource Management, in the amount 
of $243,257.34. 

2. Authorize the District Administrator to reallocate budgeted funds, in the amount of 
$107,000 to the Primary #2 Clarifier Rehab budget: and 

3. Approve a specific contingency fund for this project up to 10% ($24,325) of the 
total project amount for unforeseen future project events  

 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION: 
 
The District’s primary clarifier No. 2 was constructed in 1992. All the original equipment 
has remained on the clarifier since it was constructed and has reached or is coming to the 
end of its life span. In accordance with the District’s capital improvement project list and 
in order to ensure continued safe operation, the District budgeted for the replacement of 
all the clarifier’s major components.  
 
In mid-December of 2019, design plans and specifications for the Primary Clarifier No. 2 
Rehabilitation and Coatings Project were completed.  On December 17, 2019, the District 
advertised a Notice Inviting Bids for this project. A request for proposals was posted at the 
District website and in a local newspaper. A pre-bid conference was held at the District’s 
facility on January 7, 2020. The Bid opening for the project was held on January 23, 2020 
at 2:00pm, with four bids received, ranging in price from $243,257.34 to $307,430.00. The 
Engineer’s estimate for this project was $200,000.  
 
Fluid Resource Management posted the lowest qualified bid of $243,257.34 (Attachment 
1). The bid was evaluated by Cannon Corporation (Cannon), the District’s consulted 



Item 6C. Page 2 
 

 

project managers. After completing its review, Cannon recommended the District award 
the Primary Clarifier No. 2 Rehabilitation and Coatings Project to Fluid Resource 
Management (Attachment 2). District staff concurs with this recommendation, and that the 
bid meets all the District’s requirements. 
 
The District’s Primary Clarifier No. 2 Rehabilitation and Coatings Project originally 
consisted of the replacement of all the clarifier’s major components and installation of a 
new control box effluent valve. The District reviewed the overall project with Cannon, and 
it was recommended that the coating of the clarifier launder, interior scum box, and effluent 
box be included in the project. The inclusion of coating to the Project added an additional 
$106,910.36 to the project. Due to this cost increase, Staff is requesting Board 
authorization to reallocate budgeted funds in the amount of $107,000. 
 
In addition, Staff is requesting Board approval for a specific contingency for this project up 
to 10% ($24,325) of the total contract amount for unforeseen future project events.  
 
With Award, the Primary Clarifier No. 2 Rehabilitation and Coatings Project can proceed. 
Installation and construction are anticipated to take three months to complete from 
issuance of a notice to proceed. 
 
Fiscal Considerations: 
 
A line item of $295,000.00 was included in the Adopted Budget for Fiscal Year 2019/20, 
under Fund 26, Account No. 26-8065. Staff recommends that the remainder of budgeted 
funds from Fund 26 Primary #2 Rehab Project be used, $107,000 from Fund 19-8015 
Trunk Sewer Maintenance be reallocated, and $24,325 from Fund 26 Contingency be 
used for the project. This reallocation of funds will be done internally and no increase to 
total budget expenditures is being requested at this time. 
 
Attachments:  
 

1. Fluid Resource Management Bid 
2. Cannon Corporation Bid Recommendation Letter 



Item 6C. Attachment No. 1



Item 6C. Attachment No. 1



Item 6C. Attachment No. 1



Item 6C. Attachment No. 1



Item 6C. Attachment No. 1



Item 6C. Attachment No. 1



Item 6C. Attachment No. 1



Item 6C. Attachment No. 1



Item 6C. Attachment No. 1



Item 6C. Attachment No. 1



Item 6C. Attachment No. 1



Item 6C. Attachment No. 1



Item 6C. Attachment No. 1



Item 6C. Attachment No. 1



Item 6C. Attachment No. 1



Item 6C. Attachment No. 1



Item 6C. Attachment No. 1



 

 

1050 Southwood Drive 
San Luis Obispo, CA 93401 
T 805.544.7407  
F 805.544.3863 
 
CannonCorp.us 

January 30, 2020 

 

 

Jeremy Ghent 

District Administrator 

South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District 

1600 Aloha Way  

Oceano, CA 93455 

 

Subject: Bid Opening for Construction Award of the Clarifier No. 2 Rehabilitation 

and Coatings Project. 

 

Dear Mr. Ghent, 

 

Bids were received for the above project at 2:00 p.m. on January 23, 2020. Four (4) bidders 

submitted responsive bids, of which Fluid Resources Management (FRM), of Arroyo Grande, 

was the lowest responsive bidder.  The four Bids received were as follows: 

       

 Base Bid 

Fluid Resources Management $ 243,257.34 

Spiess Construction Co, Inc. $ 288,700.00 

Cushman Contracting Corp. $ 288,990.00 

J.R. Filanc Construction, Inc. $ 307,431.00 

 

The engineers estimate was approximately $200,000.00. FRM submitted and signed the 

appropriate bid forms. Cannon has reviewed the contractor’s information and our 

investigations are provided below. 

 

State Contractors License Board (Board): Ellison Environmental Incorporated dba Fluid 

Resources Management has (FRM’s) license (#937346) and is current and active. This 

bidder meets the Class A Requirements and there are no complaints on record that resulted 

in legal action taken by the Board. The licenses for the listed subcontractors were also 

verified as current and active. FRM also has C33- painting and decorating classification.  

 

Bid Bond: Cannon contacted Pam Berkland of Berkely Insurance Company, which is the 

surety who provided the bid bond. Ms. Berkland noted that FRM would have no trouble 

obtaining the required Bonds.  

 

Project References: FRM provided project references for three recent SSLOCSD projects, 

ranging in size from $ 174,016 to $548,419 dollars. FRM has similar sized projects in scope 

 

Item 6C. Attachment No. 2



 

 

1050 Southwood Drive 
San Luis Obispo, CA 93401 
T 805.544.7407  
F 805.544.3863 
 
CannonCorp.us 

190634
Page 2 

 

and costs on the references provided. These projects were previously completed without 

issues. FRM is well recognized in the Central Coast and competes similar project for 

neighboring agencies.  

 

Based on our review, we found no reason for the South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation 

District not to award the project to Fluid Resources Management at $243,257.34.  

 

Enclosed are all four original bidders’ packages. 

 

If you have any questions, please feel free to call me. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Amando Garza, P.E., BCEE 

 

Enclosures: Bid Summary/Tabulation (4 bidders) 

  Fluid Resources Management Bid Documents 

 

 

Item 6C. Attachment No. 2



 
 
 
 

This page left intentionally blank. 



Item 6D. Page 1 
 

 
 

SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY 
SANITATION DISTRICT 

Post Office Box 339 Oceano, California 93475-0339 
1600 Aloha Oceano, California 93445-9735 

Telephone (805) 489-6666 FAX (805) 489-2765 
www.sslocsd.org 

 
 

______________________________________________________________________ 
          Staff Report 

 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From: Jeremy Ghent, District Administrator; Mychal Jones, Plant Superintendent 
 
Date:  February 5, 2020 
 
 
Subject: DISTRICT ADMINISTRATOR AND PLANT OPERATIONS REPORT 
 
This report represents ongoing information on the latest District staff activities on major capital 
projects and studies, programmatic initiatives, regional collaboration, miscellaneous activities, 
and Plant Operations.   Updates since the last report are provided in italics below: 
 
Capital Projects: 
 
Redundancy Project:   
 

• Contractor prequalification efforts are occurring.  
• MNS has completed a constructability review of the plans 
• AT&T utility coordination meeting was held on site on 2/3/2020 

 
 

Central Coast Blue: 
• The Project Team is planning a Joint Council Meeting/Public Forum to provide a project 

overview, technical presentation and to solicit public input. 
• The intent would be for the forum to be held late February or early March.  However, 

currently the dates are still TBD.  
 
 
Misc: 
 

• LAFCO Update for the District is occurring. 
 

Plant Tours:  
1. Tour 1/22/2020  Madeleine White, Cal Poly Student 
2. Tour 1/30/2020 Jeff Edwards 



Item 6D. Page 2 
 

 
Upcoming Items (Anticipated Date): 
 
Revisions to KJ ESDC contract for Compliance with USDA (TBD) 
District Goals and Priorities (Mar 4th) 
Midyear Budget Review (Mar 4th) 
 
 



Item 6D. Page 3 
 

  
Plant Operations Report 

 
During this reporting period (January 1st – January 30th) the District’s facility met its Permit 
Limitations as required under the State of California’s National Pollutant Discharge Elimination 
System (NPDES) Permit issued to the District.  
 

Monthly Plant Data as of January 30, 2019 

 
 
*Limits – 40/60/90 represent the monthly average, weekly average, and instantaneous maximum 
value for plant effluent Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD) and Total Suspended Solids (TSS). 
>80 represents the average monthly percent removal of BOD and TSS. 2000 represents the 
maximum daily value for plant effluent fecal coliform 
 
Operation and Maintenance Projects 

• Changed out boiler air filter 
• Continued inspection of manholes 
• San Luis Powerhouse replaced low coolant sensor on emergency bypass pump 
• Removed and installed new chemical pump for filling of totes 
• Performed confined space entry into primary clarifier No. 2 to take measurements for 

clarifier rehab project 
• Surface Pumps, Inc. installed influent pump No. 3 

o Due to a pump water seal failure, the pump was removed after installation for repair 
and will be reinstalled at no charge to the District. The District will have to purchase 
a new water seal for the pump if the old seal cannot be repaired. 

• Cleaned and organized the fixed film reactor downstairs storage area 
• Troubleshot and repaired front gate keypad 
• Performed general cleanup of treatment plant 

 
Work Orders Completed 

• Inspected digester vacuum/pressure relief valves 
• Rinsed weir, launder, and baffles on all clarifiers 
• Inspected and serviced Amiad filters 
• Ran emergency generator and emergency bypass pump 
• De-ragged primary sludge pumps 
• Flushed sodium bisulfite header at chlorine contact tank 
• Changed oil in fixed film reactor distributor drive 

 

January 2020
INF Flow 

MGD

INF Peak 
Flow 
MGD

INF BOD 
mg/L

EFF BOD 
mg/L

BOD % 
Removal

INF TSS 
mg/L

EFF TSS 
mg/L

TSS % 
Removal

Fecal 
Coliform 
MPN/100

mL

Chlorine 
Usage 

lbs/day

Low 2.25 3.2 241 14.5 347 16.5 2 143
High 2.57 4.1 513 24.5 530 24.5 350 329
Average 2.39 3.6 400 20.2 95 434 20.9 95.2 35.5 216
Jan 2019 AVG 2.7 3.9 634 15.2 97.6 759 24.1 96.8 2.5 198
Limit 5.0 40/60/90 40/60/90 >80 2000



Item 6D. Page 4 
 

 
Training 

• Staff participated in training on Signs and Tags 
 

Call Outs 
• January 5th, 5:30 AM – Waste Gas Burner Pilot Light Failure. Operations staff responded 

and inspected waste gas burner. Due to high winds pilot light to waste gas burner was 
blown out. Upon arrival waste gas burner was operating normally. 

• January 9th – Received chemical load from towing company to store on District property 
per CALFire’s request. Load was from tipped over tanker.  

 
  

 


	AGENDA 02-05-2020
	ITEM 5A WARRANT REGISTER 02-05-20
	03.20.19

	ITEM 5B MINUTES OF 2020 01-15
	Item 6A. Election of the Chair and Vice Chair
	ITEM 6A ELECTION OF BOARD OFFICERS 02-06-19
	Recommendation:
	The Board consider and elect a Chair and Vice Chair for the 2020 Calendar Year.
	BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION:
	Section 1 of the District Bylaws state:

	Item 6A. Attachment District-Bylaws-Update-2019-MAY with Footer

	Item 6B. Audit 2019
	ITEM 6A FY 18-19 AUDIT STAFF REPORT
	Recommendation:
	That the Board receive a presentation of the audit report of the District’s financial records by Moss Levy & Hartzheim, LLP, the District’s independent auditor, resolve questions, call for revisions and file the 2018-19 Financial Audit.

	Audit 2019 with Footer
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20
	Page 21
	Page 22
	Page 23
	Page 24
	Page 25
	Page 26
	Page 27
	Page 28
	Page 29
	Page 30
	Page 31
	Page 32


	Item 6C. Primary Clarifier No. 2 Project
	ITEM 6C StaffReportAwardofClarifierRehab 2-5-2020
	ITEM 6C Attachment 1 FRM Bid with Footer
	ITEM 6C Attachment 2 Cannon Rec. Letter with Footer




